
 

 

 

BUDGET PANEL  

 
 

Tuesday, 11th September, 2012 
 

6.30 pm 
 

Town Hall, Watford 
 
 
 
 

Publication date: 31 August 2012 
 

CONTACT 
If you require further information or you would like a copy of this agenda in another format, 
e.g. large print, please contact Sandra Hancock in Legal and Property Services on 01923 
278377 or by email to legalanddemocratic@watford.gov.uk . 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 
 
Welcome to this meeting.  We hope you find these notes useful. 
 
 
ACCESS 
 
Access to the Town Hall after 5.15 pm is via the entrance to the Customer Service Centre 
from the visitors’ car park. 
 
Visitors may park in the staff car park after 4.00 p.m. and before 7.00 a.m.  This is a Pay 
and Display car park; the current charge is £1.50 per visit. 
 
The Committee Rooms are on the first floor of the Town Hall and a lift is available. 
Induction loops are available in the Committee Rooms and the Council Chamber. 
 
 
FIRE/EMERGENCY INSTRUCTIONS 
 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding, vacate the building immediately following the 
instructions given by the Democratic Services Officer. 
 
 

• Do not use the lifts 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings 

• Go to the assembly point at the Pond and wait for further instructions 

• Do not re-enter the building until authorised to do so. 
 
 
MOBILE PHONES 
 
Please ensure that mobile phones are switched off before the start of the meeting. 
 
 



 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillor J Dhindsa (Chair) 
Councillor S Rackett (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors J Aron, G Derbyshire, S Greenslade, P Jeffree, A Khan, R Martins and 
P Taylor 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART A - OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP  
 
 

2. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY)  
 
 

3. MINUTES  
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 12 June 2012 to be submitted and signed.   

 
 

4. REVIEW OF THE CORPORATE RECHARGE SYSTEM (To Follow) 

 
 Presentation explaining how the Council’s Corporate Recharge System works 

 
 

5. LOCALISATION OF COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT (Pages 1 - 16) 
 
 Report of the Head of Strategic Finance 

 
This report provides an update on progress in devising a local scheme to provide 
support to Council Tax payers and outlines the consultation process that will 
occur. 
 
 

6. INCOME POLICY REVIEW (Pages 17 - 52) 

 
 Report of the Head of Strategic Finance 

 
This report informs the Budget Panel on income charging policy considerations. 
 
 

7. SUMMARY OF THE FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2011/2012 (Pages 53 - 80) 
 
 Report of the Head of Strategic Finance 

 
This report informs the Budget Panel of the revenue and capital outturns for 
2011/2012 and will subsequently be reported to Cabinet on 17th September. 
 
 



 

 

8. FINANCE DIGEST 2012/2013: PERIOD 4 (END OF JULY) (Pages 81 - 104) 
 
 Report of the Head of Strategic Finance 

 
This report informs the Budget Panel of the reported budgetary variances as at 
end of July 2012. 
 
 

9. DATES OF NEXT MEETINGS  
 
 • Tuesday 23 October 2012 

• Tuesday 27 November 2012 

• Wednesday 16 January 2013  
 



 

 
 

Report to: Budget Panel 

Date of meeting: 11 September 2012 

Report of: Head of Strategic Finance  

Title: Localisation of Support for Council Tax 
 
 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This report provides an update on progress in devising a local scheme to provide 
support to Council Tax payers and outlines the consultation process that will occur. 
 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 The Budget Panel notes the current situation.. 
 

  
 
 
 
Contact Officer: 
For further information on this report please contact: 
Phil Adlard, Head of Revenues & Benefits, telephone extension 8023, email 
phil.adlard@watford.gov.uk  
Or Kathryn Robson, Partnerships and Performance, telephone extension 8077, email 
kathryn.robson@watford.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION 

 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5 

Budget Panel will recall that it considered, at its meeting in June, proposed 
changes to Central Government funding arrangements to take effect from 1st April 
2013. The essence of the changes is that Watford (and all other councils) will 
effectively suffer a reduction of at least 10% in its receipt of council tax benefit 
subsidy. It is estimated that this reduction will equate to £800k per annum for 
Watford and its preceptors (but may be higher when final figures are advised by 
the Department of Communities and Local Government). 
 
The DCLG expect local authorities to fund this budget shortfall from either further 
‘efficiencies’, by reducing entitlement to council tax benefit, or any other means 
deemed appropriate such as reviewing current levels of discount on empty 
properties and second homes. 
 
Budget Panel gave this issue very serious consideration and were concerned 
about the impact on vulnerable sectors of the community (pensioners are exempt 
from any reductions) and felt that a review of discounts should be the first 
recourse. Budget Panel did not favour an across the board reduction in benefit 
entitlement. 
 
Since the meeting of the Budget Panel, all authorities within Hertfordshire have 
considered the issues and could not reach agreement regarding the shape of any 
future benefit scheme. There will not be a common scheme across the County 
although some districts are attempting to produce similar schemes within local 
areas. In that respect Watford and Three Rivers have been attempting to develop 
a common scheme and that work will be influenced by the Consultation process. 
 
The Elected Mayor and Portfolio Holders have considered this issue (there being 
no Cabinet Meeting within the tight timescales) and generally endorsed the views 
of the Budget Panel. A menu of options has to be presented to consultees and 
relevant documentation is attached at Appendix I (an outline of the proposed 
scheme) and Appendix II (survey). It should be noted that this does include the 
option of an across the board reduction in benefit. This option is not favoured by 
the Mayor/ Portfolio holders but it was felt that it had to be included as a bona fide 
option. There are clear dangers that vested interests might support this option in 
order to protect their own targeted financial position. It is essential that as wide a 
response as possible is encouraged.   
 
 

4.0 
 

CONSULTATION PROCESS 

4.1 As part of the development of a local council tax support scheme, billing 
authorities (such as Watford BC) have to consult with ‘major precepting authorities 
and such other persons as it considers likely to have an interest in the scheme 
about the scheme’. 
 

4.2 A briefing paper was brought to Budget Panel in June 2012 outlining how Watford 
BC might approach this duty to consult.  Following the decision by Hertfordshire 
authorities not to develop a countywide scheme, a proposed scheme was 
approved for consultation in late July – see 3.5 above.  The proposals previously 
outlined in the paper to Budget Panel, as to how Watford BC would manage its 
own consultation, have been progressed. 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

4.3 The elements of Watford BC’s consultation process comprise: 
 

• A survey – as attached – Appendix II (available online and offline) 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/council_tax_support_scheme_2012 

 

• Consultation page for Watford BC website (to include an overview of the 
proposed scheme and a calculation tool so people can find out the impact 
of the proposals on their household) 
 

• Setting up ‘drop in’ sessions for those not online / who want to go through 
the survey in person (September) 
 

• Letter to be sent to those affected by reduction in discount (i.e. those of 
working age) inviting them to take part in the consultation.  The letter will 
include details of the online survey (including where to access computers 
in the borough for free), the drop in sessions,  it will also offer the 
opportunity to go through the survey over the phone if that is easier for 
people 
 

• News release for local media + Watford BC website alerting people to the 
consultation and the various ways to get involved 
 

• Contacting ‘interested parties’ to advise them of the consultation including: 
o Hertfordshire County Council 
o Hertfordshire Police 
o Watford Community Housing Trust + other registered providers 
o Hertfordshire Welfare Unit (at Hertfordshire CC) 
o Watford Citizens Advice Bureau 

 

• Members update: 
o Report to Budget Panel – 11 September 2012 
o Article in Members’ Bulletin – September 2012  

 
4.4 The consultation is open until 8 October 2012.  Results from the consultation will 

help support the recommendations within the report to Cabinet in November and 
the development of the Equality Impact Analysis – see 9.0 below. 

 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1 Central Government proposals mean that Watford Borough Council and its 

preceptors (HCC & HPA) will experience a shortfall in funding of at least £800k 
per annum. Recent exemplifications seem to suggest this may be understating 
the position and that the shortfall may be closer to £900k (final figures will not be 
known until the Autumn).  
 

5.2 Leaders across Hertfordshire have indicated that they would attempt to 
compensate for this shortfall by reviewing council tax discounts and the current 
national council tax benefit scheme. There is no wish to increase the level of 
council tax to meet any funding deficit. Any decision will be painful to those clients 
who are affected but regrettably there are limited alternatives. A further report 
upon the ultimate financial implication for Watford will be produced for a future 
meeting of the Panel. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 3



 

6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 The Head of Legal and Property Services comments that if no scheme is decided 
by 31 January 2013, a “default scheme” will be imposed. This default scheme 
largely replicates the current local council tax benefit scheme.  
 

  
7.0 
 

CONSULTATION  PROCESS 
 

7.1 See 4.0. 

 
 
 
 
 

8.0 POTENTIAL RISKS 

  

Potential Risk Likelihood Impact Overall 
Score 

That consultation is not progressed and 
feedback not achieved from local people and 
organisations 
 

2 3 6 

That the Software required for a local 
scheme is not in place in time for the 
scheme to be fully operational in 2013 
 

4 3 12 

That a robust Equality Impact Analysis is not 
developed to support decision making 

1 4 4 

 

9.0 EQUALITIES 
 

9.1 Watford Borough Council is committed to equality and diversity as an employer, 
service provider and as a strategic partner. In order to fulfil this commitment and 
its duties under the Equality Act 2010 it is important to demonstrate how policies, 
practices and decisions impact on people with different protected characteristics. 
It is also important to demonstrate that the Council is not discriminating unlawfully 
when carrying out any of its functions. 
 
A draft Equality Impact Analysis (EIA) is prepared and will be reviewed as the 
consultation findings are received.  The EIA will be available to support the report 
to Cabinet in November when a decision on the final scheme will be sought. 
 
The survey contains equality questions on all protected characteristics as defined 
by the Equality Act 2010 to support  
 

 
Appendices:  
 

• Appendix I – Watford Borough Council local council tax support scheme explanatory note 
• Appendix II – local council tax support scheme survey 

 

Page 4



 

Appendix I 

 
Watford Borough Council 

 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

 
Explanatory Note 

 
Introduction 
 
From April 2013, the Government has abolished Council Tax Benefit. To help people who 
may have difficulty in paying their Council Tax, the Government has said that each Local 
Authority should have its own Local Council Tax Support Scheme. 
 
The local schemes will have to take into account the following: 
 

1. The amount the Government will give to each Council to fund the local scheme will 
be 10% less than it gave under the current Council Tax Benefit scheme. This 
means that Watford will receive around £780,000 less from the Government so it 
will need to look at ways to make this saving. 

2. Pensioners will be protected from any changes that a new scheme will introduce 
and will have their awards calculated the same way as they are now. 

 
Other Considerations 
 
Watford Borough Council has to take into account the impact that the new scheme will 
have on various groups within the borough, for example the disabled and families with 
children. It also has to consider what effect the scheme will have on various religious and 
ethnic groups. 
 
The Local Scheme that is being considered intends to keep the elements currently used to 
work out a person’s Council Tax Benefit so that people who are disabled or families and 
may have extra financial burdens do not lose out when compared to other claimants 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



 
 
The Local Scheme 
 
Watford Borough Council will need to reduce the amount it pays in Council Tax Support to 
people who are working age so that it does not increase the Council Tax that everyone will 
have to pay. 
 
There are two options under consideration and part of the consultation that Watford 
Borough Council is carrying out. 
 
These are: 
 
Option 1. 
 
To reduce the Council Tax Support that is received by Working Age claimants by a fixed 
percentage. This will be in the region of 17% when compared to the amount of help a 
person is getting in Council Tax Benefit this year. 
 
Option 2. 
 
The second option is to make the savings by reducing the amount it pays to certain 
claimants as follows: 
 
2a. Reduce the Capital Limit to £8,000 
 
Under the current scheme, you cannot receive Council Tax Benefit if you have savings 
(money in the bank, shares etc) of more than £16,000. We are considering reducing this 
limit so that you will not receive Council Tax Support from April 2013 if you have more than 
£8,000 in savings. 
 
2b. Increase Non-Dependant Deductions 
 
Under the current scheme, if you have an adult living with you such as a grown-up son or 
daughter (known as a non-dependant), we make a deduction from the amount of Council 
Tax Benefit we pay. This deduction is based on the income that the non-dependant 
receives. We are considering increasing the level of deductions so that they are double the 
current level. 
 
2c. Capping the amount of Council Tax Support to the level of a Band D property. 
 
Each property is placed in a Council Tax Band based on its value. At the moment there 
are 8 Council Tax Bands, A – H with A being the cheaper properties and H the most 
expensive. The current Council Tax Benefit scheme has no restrictions so a person living 
in a large property in Band H could still get help with all of the Council Tax they should 
pay. 
 
We are considering capping the amount of Council Tax Support so that anyone who lives 
in a property which is in Council Tax Band E or above, will have the level of support 
calculated as if they were in a property in Band D. 
 

Page 6



The total amount that will be saved by the above options (2a – 2c) will still not be 
enough to cover the £780,000 that needs to be saved. As a result Watford Borough 
Council is considering the following additional options: 
 
2e. Abolish the Council Tax Exemption given to properties that are empty and need 
structural work to make them habitable. 
 
At the moment, if a property is empty and needs structural work to make it habitable, no 
Council tax is charged for up to 12 months. The Government is intending to abolish this 
exemption and replace it by giving Local Authorities the power to grant a discount of 
anything from 0% to 100%. 
 
So that we can increase the number of properties available and discourage owners from 
keeping properties empty, we are considering NOT granting a discount to empty properties 
that need structural work. 
 
2f. Abolish the Council Tax Exemption given to properties that are empty and unfurnished. 
 
At the moment, if a property is empty and unfurnished, no Council tax is charged for up to 
6 months. The Government is intending to abolish this exemption and replace it by giving 
Local Authorities the power to grant a discount of anything from 0% to 100%. 
 
So that we can increase the number of properties available and discourage owners from 
keeping properties empty, we are considering NOT granting a discount to empty 
properties. 
 
2g. Increase the amount we charge on Second Homes 
 
If a property is classed as a second home (because a person’s main home is elsewhere), 
Watford Borough Council grants a discount of 50% of the Council Tax due. The 
Government has stated that it intends to change the law so that Councils can charge full 
Council Tax on Second Homes. 
 
Watford Borough Council intends to make use of this new power so that second homes 
are charged full Council Tax. 
 
2h. Charge an “Empty Homes” Premium 
 
Properties that have been empty for a long time can become a problem. They can attract 
vandalism or squatters and can have a negative effect on a neighbourhood. The 
Government has stated that it will allow Councils to charge more Council Tax on a 
property that has been empty for more than 2 years. 
 
Watford Borough Council intends to use this power and charge an extra 50% where a 
property has been empty for more than 2 years to encourage more of these properties to 
become occupied. 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 
 
 
 

 
Why are we consulting  
 
The government is proposing to abolish the national scheme for council tax benefits (CTB) for 
those who may have difficulty in paying their council tax bills on 31 March 2013.    
 
All councils have to replace the national scheme with their own local one, called a council tax 
support scheme. To ensure we have a scheme that suits our borough we are consulting on 
proposals for our new scheme. 
 
Watford Borough Council’s local scheme will have to take into account the following: 
 

1. The amount the government will give to each council to fund the local scheme will be 10% 
less than it gave under the current council tax benefit scheme.  This means that Watford 
will receive around £780,000 less from the government so it will need to look at ways to 
make this saving. It means we have to make some difficult decisions about who gets 
financial support and how much 
 

2. Pensioners will be protected from any changes that a new scheme will introduce and will 
have their support calculated the same way as they are now 
 

If the council wanted to keep the current CTB scheme (so not reducing the council tax support it 
pays) it would need to fund the extra cost itself, which would mean an increase in council tax for 
everyone  or cost reductions in other services provided by the Council.  
 
Instead, Watford  is proposing a new scheme that is as fair as possible and in line with the needs 
of the community. The council is consulting with residents and other interested stakeholders from 
15 August to 8 October 2012 to find out their views. Feedback from this consultation will be used 
by the council’s Cabinet in deciding the detail of the new scheme later in the year. 
 
The new scheme will start from 1 April 2013. 
 
 
Who will be affected?  
 
Apart from pensioners, everyone of working age currently entitled to council tax benefit will 
potentially be affected so it’s important to have your say. As the scheme concerns Watford’s local 
approach to support for council tax, we are keen to receive views from all residents whether or not 
they currently claim benefit and from the voluntary sector and relevant advice organisations. The 
information you provide will be treated confidentially and used solely by Watford Borough Council.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix II  
Watford Borough Council 

Local Council Tax Support  
Consultation 2012 

 

 

Page 9



 

 

Our local scheme 

 
Watford Borough Council will need to reduce the amount it pays in council tax support to people 
who are working age so that it does not increase the council tax that everyone will have to pay. 
 
There  are two options under consideration, which we would like you to comment on. These are: 
 
 
Option 1 
 
To reduce the council tax support that is received by all working age claimants by a fixed 
percentage.   
This will be in the region of 17%  when compared to the amount of support a person is getting in 
council tax benefit this year 
 
 
Option 2 
 
To make savings by identifying a range of reductions to the amount Watford BC pays to certain 
claimants.  This would mean no one faces a reduction in their support as high as 17%  
 
 
Q1. Considering the two options for Watford’s local scheme outlined above, which do 
 you think should be taken forward: Please tick one box only 
 
 

� Option 1 

 Reduce the council tax support for all working age claimants by 17% 

 

� Option 2 

 Identify a range of reductions to payments made to certain claimants so no one   
 faces a 17% reduction in their support 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

If Watford BC were to take forward Option 2 there are a number of options that have been 
identified to help achieve the savings needed.  These are outlined below: 
 
 
Q2. Please indicate if you agree or disagree with the following options on discounts that 
 Watford BC could introduce as part of its local council tax scheme: 
 

  Agree Disagree Don’t 
know 

Option 1 Level of savings 
Under the current scheme you can’t receive council 
tax benefit if you have savings (money in the bank, 
shares etc) of more than £16,000. 
 
Option:  We could reduce this limit for our council 
tax support scheme to £8,000 from April 2013. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 

� 

Option 2 Non-dependent deductions 
Under the current scheme, if you have an adult 
living with you (e.g. grown up son or daughter) we 
make a deduction from the council tax benefit we 
pay.   
 
Option:  We could increase the level of deductions 
so they are double the current level. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

Option 3 Capping support to the level of a Band D 
property 
All properties have a council tax band (based on 
their value).  These range from A – H (H being the 
most expensive properties). 
Under the current scheme you can receive support 
no matter what band property you live in. 
 
Option:  We could cap the amount of support so 
that anyone in a Band E property or above will 
have their level of support calculated as if they 
lived in a Band D property. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
Even if we did take forward the three options above, the savings we would make would 
not be enough to cover the £780,000 cut in our budget.  
 
As a result Watford BC is also considering the following options that affect current 
exemptions and other charges. Many of these options will help discourage owners from 
leaving properties empty and help increase the number of properties available within the 
borough. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 

 
Q3. Please indicate if you agree with the following options on exemptions and other 
 charges that Watford BC could introduce as part of its local council tax scheme: 

 
 
  Agree Disagree Don’t 

know 

Option 4 Empty properties needing structural work 
At the moment, if a property is empty and needs 
structural work to make it fit to live in, no council 
tax is charged for up to 12 months. 
 
The government is planning to abolish this 
exemption and leave us to decide if we want to 
offer a discount from 0% to 100%. 
 
Option:  We could stop granting any discount on 
empty properties needing structural work (i.e. 0% 
discount)  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

Option 5 Empty and unfurnished properties 
At the moment if a property is empty and 
unfurnished, no council tax is charged for up to 6 
months. 
 
The government is planning to abolish this 
exemption and leave us to decide if we want to 
offer a discount from 0% to 100%. 
  
Option:  We could stop granting any discount on 
properties that are empty and unfurnished (i.e. 0% 
discount) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

Option 6 Second homes 
At the moment, we grant a discount of 50% on 
council tax for properties classed as second 
homes.   
 
The government is planning to change the law so 
that councils can charge full council tax on second 
homes. 
 
Option:  We could charge full council tax on 
second homes 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 

Option 7 Empty homes premium 
The government is planning to allow councils to 
charge more council tax on a property that has 
been empty for more than 2 years 
 
Option:  We could charge an extra 50% where a 
property has been empty for more than 2 years 
 

 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 

Page 12



 

Q4. Are you? 

 

� An organisation (please go to Question 5) 

� An individual (please go to Question 6) 

 
 
 
Q5. Are you responding to this consultation in your capacity as a representative of any 
 of the following? 

 

� Voluntary organisation 

� Advice organisation 

� Precepting body 

� Housing association 

� Landlord 

� Other (please write in) 

 
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,.. 
 
PLEASE GO TO THE END OF THE SURVEY – QUESTION 21  – FINAL COMMENTS 

 
 
Q6. Do you pay council tax to Watford Borough Council? 

 

�  Yes    � No 

 
 
Q7. Do you currently receive council tax benefit? 

 

�  Yes    � No 

 
 
Q8. Would any of the changes outlined above impact your household? 
 

�  Yes (go to Q9)    � No (go to Q10) 

 

 
Q9. If yes, which one(s)? 

 
� Option 1 – Level of savings � Option 4 – Empty properties needing     

 structural work 

� Option 2 – Non-dependent deductions �  Option 5 - Empty and unfurnished    

  properties 

� Option 3 – Capping support to the level of 

 a Band D property 
�  Option 6 – Second homes 

 �  Option 7 – Empty homes premium 

Page 13



 

About You 

 
It would be very helpful if you could complete this part of the survey.  The information 
you give us will help us find out if all sections of the community are taking the 
opportunity to share their views on the future of our services.  All the questions are 
voluntary and your answers will be completely anonymous and not used for any 
other purposes. They are, in the main, in line with the questions asked in the Census 
2011. 

 
 
Q10. Are you 
 

� Male � Female
  

 
 

Q11. To which of these groups do you consider you belong to?  
 

White or White British 

 

  Black or Black British  

English / Welsh / Scottish / 
Northern Irish / British 

� 
 Caribbean � 

Gypsy or Irish Traveller � 
 African � 

Irish 

 
� 

 Any other Black background 

 (� and write in below) 
� 

Any other White background 

(� and write in below) 
� 

  

………….………….………….…… 
 

 

………….………….………….… 
 

 Asian or Asian British 
 

Mixed / multiple ethnic groups 
 

 Indian � 

White & Black Caribbean � 
 Pakistani � 

White & Black African � 
 Bangladeshi � 

White & Asian � 
 Chinese � 

Any other mixed  / multiple 
ethnic background  

(� and write in below) 

� 
 Any other Asian background  

(� and write in below) 
� 

 

DDDD.DDDD.DDDD.D 
   

DDDD.DDDD.DDDD.DD  

   Other ethnic group 
 

   Arab � 
   Other ethnic group 

(� and write in below) 

 

� 

    

DDDD.DDDD.DDDD.DD  
 
 
 

Page 14



 

Q12. Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or disability which 

has  lasted, or is expected to last, at least 12 months? 

�  Yes, limited a lot 

�  Yes, limited a little 

�  No 
 
 

Q13. Please indicate your current age group. 

 

 
Q14. What is your religion or belief? 

 

 
Q15. How would you define your sexual orientation? 
 

 
Q16. What is your legal marital or same-sex civil partnership status?  
 
Never married and never registered a 
same-sex civil partnership 
 

� In a registered same-sex civil 
partnership 
 

� 

Married � Separated, but still legally in a 
same-sex civil partnership 

� 

Separated, but still legally married 
 

� Formerly in a same-sex civil 
partnership which is now legally 
dissolved 

� 

Divorced � Surviving partner from a same-
sex civil partnership 
   

� 

Widowed �   
 

16 to 24 years  &&&             � 55 to 59 years &&...&&&&&&& � 
25 to 34 years &&&&&&&&&&&& � 60 to 64 years &&&&&&&&&... � 
35 to 44 years &&&&&&&&&&&& � 65 to 70 years &&&&&&&&&& � 
45 to 54 years &&&&&&&&&&&& � 70 years + &&&&&&&&&&&& � 

No religion&&&&&&&&&&&& � Muslim &&&&&&&&&&&&&... � 
Buddhist &&&&&&&&&&&&&& � Sikh  &&&&&&&&&&&&&&... � 
Christian (including Church of England, 
Catholic, Protestant and all other Christian 
denominations) 

� Any other religion, write in  
 
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& 

� 

Hindu &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& �   
Jewish &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&.. �   

Heterosexual &&&&&&&&&&&& � Lesbian  &&&&&&&&&&&& � 
Bisexual &&&&&&&&&&&&&...  �   
Gay  &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& �   

Page 15



 

Q17.  Is your gender identity the same as the gender you were assigned at birth.  

 

 �  Yes    � No 

 
 
Q18. Have you been pregnant or had maternity leave from work within the last two years? 
 

 �  Yes    � No 
 
 
Q19.  Would you say that any of the following describe you or your household?  
 Please tick as many as apply to you 
 

� A lone parent with one or more children under the age of five 

� A lone parent with all children above the age of five 

� Living with a partner and one or more children under the age of five 

� Living with a partner and with one of more children all above the age of five 

� A carer 

� A household with full and/or part-time workers 

� A household that includes someone who is disabled 

� A single person household or a couple without children 

� None of them 

� Don't know 

 
Q20. Please add any additional comments if you feel the proposed council tax scheme 
changes  will affect you more because of your membership of any of the above groups.     
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Final Comments 
 
Q21. Do you have any additional comments on the proposed local council tax 
scheme  you would want us to consider.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Thank you very much for taking part in this survey 

 

 

Page 16



 

Report to:  Budget Panel 

Date of Meeting: 11 September 2012 

Report of:  Head of Strategic Finance 

Title: Income Policy Review 

 
 
1.0 SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report informs the Budget Panel on income charging policy considerations. 
 
 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 To request the Budget Panel to consider the attached papers and make 

recommendations for a revised Income Charging Policy. Views of the Budget Panel 
can then be incorporated into a more specific paper (back to Budget Panel) with 
proposals for levels of fees and charges for 2013/2014. Budget Panel can then 
make recommendations on to Cabinet as part of the Budget process for next year. 
In particular would the Budget Panel accept the categorisation of charges referred 
to at Paragraph 7.3.1 and should officers seek to classify current fees and charges 
accordingly? 

 
 
 
Contact Officer 
For further information on this report please contact Bernard Clarke, Head of Strategic 
Finance, telephone extension 8189, email bernard.clarke@watford.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 17



3.0 Introduction 
 
3.1 The Budget Panel’s Rolling Work Programme for 2012/13 requested a report on 

Income Policy Review to its September 2012 meeting.  
 
3.2 This report provides a discussion document and potential framework for deciding 

whether and how to charge for services in order to strike a balance between the 
need to generate increased income (and so reduce the pressure for reductions to 
front line services) and the need to mitigate any direct adverse impact charging 
could have on achieving the Council’s priorities or the use of services by the 
community. 

3.3 The Council does have a framework policy for determining the setting of fees and 
charges but it has not been reviewed for a number of years (see Appendix 1) 

 
4.0 Background 
 
4.1 The Council continues to face significant budgetary pressures. Income has reduced 

along with reductions in Government Grant. Service Prioritisation measures over 
2010-2013 has achieved annual savings of £1.6m. Service Redesign and the 
Council Roadmap is targeted to generate a further £2m of additional annual 
savings/income over the remaining period of the current Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS) (2013-2016). 

4.2 The Council is faced with decisions to achieve balanced budgets and acceptable 
levels of Council Tax. A consideration in setting budgets within the MTFS will be 
whether to increase income from charging for those services which are currently 
provided or subsidised by Council Tax. A clear framework and approach is required 
to ensure transparency. 

 
 
5.0 Audit Commission Review 
 
5.1 The Audit Commission has produced three reports in recent years ‘Positively    

Charged’; ‘The Price is Right’ and ‘A Stitch in Time’  and internet references are 
provided within the Appendices Section of this report. 
 

5.2 A summary of the Audit Commission publication ‘Positively Charged’ is included 
below. The report itself includes recommendations with questions for councillors to 
examine their own council’s approach to charging.  

 
‘Positively Charged’ (Audit Commission 2008) 

� Intended to help councils improve their approaches to charging, enabling 
them to better support their strategic objectives. 

• Charging for local services makes a significant contribution to council 
finances, with district councils collecting nearly one fifth of their total 
expenditure on services, which has a substantial impact on an authority’s 
budget.  

Page 18



� Charging Policy is an important tool to influence or discourage people to use 
services, and is not being used enough in this capacity. In choosing how 
charges are used, councils are able to make an important decision – which 
users should pay for services, and which should be subsidised by the 
taxpayer. 

� The report made the following recommendations: 

• Councils should undertake regular reviews of their approaches to 
charging, both within service areas and across the council; 

• Finance managers should ensure that income from charges, and 
the level of subsidy this provides, are transparent and inform the 
decision-making process; 

• Councillors and managers should better understand the non-
financial contribution charging has to strategic and service 
objectives.  

� Councils do not make an effective use of their charging powers, and 
authorities need to change their approach to charging if they are to achieve 
their financial and strategic objectives. At a time when pressure on services 
is increasing in the public sector and revenues decreasing, councils need to 
understand, address and improve the way they charge for services. 

 

6.0 Response from Other Authorites 

6.1 Every District Council in England (circa 280 authorities) has been contacted to 
ascertain how they deal with the issues associated with ‘an Incomes Policy’. It was 
extremely gratifying that approximately 50 authorities responded accompanied by at 
least 30 detailed submissions. Attached at Appendices 2 ,3 & 4 are three typical 
responses received and the Budget Panel might find it useful background as part of 
this evening’s discussion.    

6.2 The general approach of councils over recent years has been to classify services in 
a framework to support a clear policy approach. An income policy must support the 
strategic aims of the Council. In terms of increases in charges there are different 
approaches whereby, for example, Guildford has been increasing its charges by 
inflation whereas other authorities have tended to take Watford’s approach which 
has been to generally freeze charges until the wider economy recovers. 

6.3 Additionally recent developments with a number of councils have been to explore 
innovative ways to involve corporate sponsors (other than sponsorship of 
roundabouts and road junctions to meet maintenance costs). Aimed to offset the 
effect of spending cuts these seek to access revenue from asset wealth and include 
advertising on council websites, use of ‘brand reputation’ to endorse private 
initiatives and sponsoring council buildings and museums. This is an initiative that 
Watford has tended to reject in the past. 

 

Page 19



6.4     Discussions have also been held with SLM (the Council’s private sector operator of 
our leisure facilities) and centred upon any modelling techniques used to determine 
future pricing policies. SLM has advised that it does not model ‘elasticity of supply 
and demand’ as it is an imprecise science. Price increases are very much geared to 
a subjective view of what the market might bear but it is important to closely monitor 
usage and be prepared to reverse increases if they appear counter productive.  

7.0 Policy Principles 

7.1 Key principles for a Charging Policy - in general a charge will be levied for all 
discretionary services on the principle “the user pays”. Charges should seek to 
optimise potential income. The decision of whether to charge for a specific service 
will be subject to an assessment of the impact of charging on the delivery of the 
Councils corporate priorities and priority outcomes. 

7.2 In undertaking an ‘impact assessment’ the following questions will be asked:- 

• Why are we providing the service? 

• Which of the Council’s corporate priorities and priority outcomes are 
achieved by the service? 

• What impact will charging have on the achievement of the Council’s 
corporate priorities and priority outcomes? 

• Do other similar or neighbouring Councils charge for the service and what is 
the impact of any such change? 

• Are alternate service providers operating in the market and if so what is their 
level of charging? 

• What is the estimated net additional income that is likely to be generated by 
the charge (i.e. impact on our financial position)? 

7.3  There are different levels, or basis, for the charging of service. The actual level, or 
basis of the charge, will be influenced by the impact assessments.   

7.3.1 The objectives for differing charging strategies can be -  

Charging Strategy 
 

Objective 

Commercial Charges The Council aims to cover the cost of providing the 
service and make a surplus used to fund other priority 
services. The full cost of the service, including an 
element for capital financing costs, support services 
and corporate overheads, will be the starting point for 
calculating charges. 

Full Cost Recovery The council aims to recover the costs of providing this 
service from those who use it. The full cost of the 
service, including an element for capital financing 
costs, support services and corporate overheads, will 
be the starting point for calculating charges. 

Subsidised Users of the service to make a contribution to the 
costs of providing it. This might be to meet a service 
objective or allow competition with other providers 

Page 20



Free The Council chooses to make the service available at 
no charge to meet a service objective - cost of service 
met by all Council Tax payers. 

Statutory Charges are determined in line with legal 
requirements 

 

8.0 Service Responsibilities 

8.1 Service Managers should initially assess current chargeable services and allocate 
these to one of the categories in the Charging Strategy above. 

8.2 To maximise income from fees and charges in accordance with an Income policy, 
Service Managers would be responsible for –  

• Annually reviewing their services to identify any aspects that could be 
charged for and to introduce such charges unless Cabinet considers it would 
be inappropriate.  

 

• Reviewing and varying fees and charges at least annually for services under 
their control, after consultation with the relevant  Portfolio Holder and, in 
doing so, they shall –  

 
o ensure that relevant legislation is complied with, 
o have regard to the charges of any alternative service providers with 

whom the Council is competing, seek to maximise income, net of 
applicable costs, unless it will have a clearly detrimental impact on the 
achievement of the Council objectives. 

o introduce differential pricing to particular client groups where these are 
expected to stimulate demand and generate additional net income 
which would otherwise not be obtained. 

o set prices lower than could be reasonably achieved if this is the most 
cost effective way of achieving Council objectives and the necessary 
funding is available. Use of this option requires approval of Cabinet, 

o set fees and charges that allow an element of discretion if it can be 
demonstrated that this will lead to an overall benefit to the Council. It 
is important that any use of discretion is recorded so that it can be 
clearly shown that decisions have been made fairly and consistently. 

 

9.0 Equalities 

9.1 Where appropriate and specifically when significant increases in existing charges or 
the introduction of new/additional charges are being considered, an Equalities 
Analysis will be undertaken. 

9.2 This will ensure that the impact on residents and service users, who share a 
relevant protected characteristic as defined under the Equality Act 2010, are fully 
understood before any proposals are implemented. 

 

 

Page 21



10.0 Shared Service Implications 

10.1 The opportunity will be taken wherever possible to align with and follow the same 
policy principles as Three Rivers District Council. 

11.0 Concessions 

11.1 In some circumstances it may be appropriate to consider offering a concession to   
certain users of a particular service where this is consistent with achieving the 
Council’s strategic aims and priorities. 

11.2  The Council recently reviewed its policy on concessions and it is suggested that this 
should not be reconsidered at the present time. 

12.0  Financial Implications 

12.1 Included in the body of the Report 
 
13.0   Legal Implications 
 
13.1 Councils can charge for services where express legal powers exist. The Local 

Government Act 2003 introduced a wide ranging power to charge and this includes 
all discretionary services under the Well Being powers. There are exceptions where 
charging is specifically prohibited or a special charging regime exists. 

  
14.0  Potential Risks  
14.1   

Potential Risk Likelihood Impact  Overall 
Score 

The Council fails to increase 
charges. Services have to be cut 
back to compensate 

      2      3      6 

The Council increases charges 
excessively and chokes off 
demand  

      2      3       6 

    

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1: Current Council Policy on Income Charging 
Appendix 2: Lancaster Fees & Charges Policy 
Appendix 3: Woking Strategy for Applying and Setting Fees & Charges 
Appendix 4: Newark and Sherwood Corporate Charging Policy 
 
Internet References to Audit Commission Publications 

Positively Charged – Audit Commission 2008 http://www.audit-
commission.gov.uk/subwebs/publications/studies/studyPDF/3423.pdf 

The Price is Right – Audit Commission 1999 http://www.audit-
commission.gov.uk/subwebs/publications/studies/studyPDF/1585.pdf 

Stitch in Time – Audit Commission 1999 http://www.audit-
commission.gov.uk/subwebs/publications/studies/studyPDF/1266.pdf 
 
  

Page 22



 

        APPENDIX 1 
 

Fees and Charges Policy 
 

1. All services provided to an individual/body/organisation should attract a 
charge, if there is the legal power to make one and it can be collected 
economically. 

 
2. Charges should be established after consideration of: 

• benchmarking comparisons with other providers 

• consultation with the public, including users 

• market conditions, including flexibility of charges 

• the cost of the service 

• service policy objectives 

• legal requirements 
 
with the aim of ensuring that any subsidy to the service is a deliberate 
policy decision  

 
3. Wherever possible, there should be provision for reduced charges for 

those on limited incomes.    
 
4. Methods of income collection must make payment as easy as possible 

for the customer  
 
5. Heads of Service are responsible for ensuring that these principles are 

adopted and all services reviewed at least annually. 
 
 
 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



        Appendix 2 

                                                  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

FEES AND CHARGES POLICY 

 

 

DECEMBER 2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1. The decisions made by councils about charging for local public services affect 

everyone.  Where councils charge for services, users pay directly for some or 
all of the costs of the services they use.  Where no charges are made, or 
where charges do not recover the full cost of providing a service, council 
taxpayers subsidise users. 

 
1.2. Fees and charges represent an important source of income, providing finance 

to assist in achieving the corporate objectives of Lancaster City Council.  The 
purpose of this policy is to establish a framework within which fees and 
charges levied by the council are agreed and regularly reviewed. 

 
1.3. The decision on whether to make a charge (and the amount to charge) is not 

always within the control of the council.  But where it is, it is important that the 
implications of the charging decisions being taken are fully understood and 
that the appropriate information is available for the council to make informed 
decisions. 

 
1.4. The policy therefore provides clear guidance to service heads and service 

managers on; 
 

• The setting of new fees and the policy context within which existing 
charges should be reviewed. 

• How fees and charges can assist in the achievement of corporate 
priorities. 

• The council’s approach to cost recovery and income generation from 
fees and charges. 

• Eligibility for concessions. 
 
1.5. The policy should allow the council to have a properly considered, consistent 

and informed approach to all charges it makes for its services.  This will in 
turn, support the delivery of corporate objectives. 

 
2. GENERAL POLICY 
 
2.1. This policy relates to fees and charges currently being levied by the council 

and those which are permissible under the wider general powers to provide 
and charge for discretionary services included within the Local Government 
Act 2003. 

 
2.2. Statutory charges also fall within the scope of the policy, even though their 

level may not be determined by the council.  This ensures clarity and 
consistency and allows subsequent reviews of the policy to be 
comprehensive.  It also enables changes to the national legislative charging 
framework, and any other situations that may arise in the future, to be 
addressed. 

 
Council policies, strategies and priorities 

 
2.3. Specific decisions and charging policies should support delivery of the 

council’s Corporate Plan and other local strategies and service objectives. 

Page 26



Charging decisions will take account of the council’s corporate priorities and 
have regard for the potential impact on other service areas. 

 
Basis of charging decisions  

 
2.4. The council will charge for all services where it is appropriate and cost-

effective to do so, unless there are contrary policies, legal or contractual 
reasons.  

 
2.5. When discretionary charges are set, the general aim shall be to cover the 

cost of the service or, where legally possible, the council may charge on a 
commercial basis. Charges will reflect the full cost of provision, unless 
covered by subsidies/concessions designed to meet corporate priorities or 
there are contrary policies or legal reasons. 

 
Concessions 

 
2.6. Subsidies and concessions should be used to help achieve specific targets or 

objectives.  Concessions should be awarded and reviewed in relation to each 
service. Where subsidies and concessions are applied there should be an 
evaluation process in place to measure levels of success in meeting these 
objectives. Definitions and qualifying criteria for concessionary target groups 
should be consistent across the council. 

 
Surplus Income  

 
2.7. Income derived from charging will be used to offset the costs of providing the 

service being charged for, including support service costs. Where a surplus, 
over budget, is generated from charges 50% of this surplus will be considered 
as a corporate resource and transferred to unallocated balances. This is on 
the provision that this is not prohibited by other statutory requirements or 
government guidance. 

 
2.8. However, it is acknowledged that the ability to use charges to deliver the 

corporate priorities of the Council requires a degree of freedom and corporate 
controls (as expressed through this policy) need to avoid imposing 
unnecessary restrictions. Therefore, proposals for re-investing any additional 
income raised from charging in the expansion and development of a particular 
service will need to be considered as part of the annual review of charges. 
Each proposal will therefore be considered on its own merit and in light of 
financial planning process. 

 
Efficient Administration 

 
2.9. Arrangements for charging and collecting fees should be efficient, practical 

and simple to understand by users. The reasons behind any significant 
changes to charges should be communicated to residents and service users. 
The impact of charging decisions on service users and local residents will 
need to be taken into account. 

 
Regular Review 
 

2.10. Charges, and decisions not to charge, will be reviewed annually in sufficient 
time for the impact of any revisions to be included in the budget setting 
process. 

Page 27



 
 

Policy Implementation  
 

2.11. The policy will encompass decisions made as part of the annual fees and 
charges review process, where new charges are introduced or where existing 
charges are removed or amended. 

 

2.12. The policy is undertaken in accordance with the council’s Constitution 
(Financial Regulations). These put the responsibility with Service Heads, for 
recommending the level of existing or new charges, to the Council. 

 
3. CHARGING POLICY 
 
3.1. Within the service and financial planning process, each fee or charge should 

be identified to one of the categories in the following table and the appropriate 
charging policy adopted in establishing and reviewing charging rates / levels.  
This will be subject to approval through the budget process or, for in-year 
changes, subject to approval by Cabinet or Service Heads under delegated 
authority.  In all cases, in determining an appropriate charging policy, proper 
consideration should be given to the wider equalities implications which may 
be involved affecting full accessibility of all groups to council services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2. In applying the appropriate charging policy, the issues which may need to be 

considered in setting the level of fee and charge for any particular service 
include typically those set out below: 

CHARGING POLICY POLICY OBJECTIVE 
Full commercial The council seeks to maximise revenue within an 

overall objective of generating as large a surplus 
(or a minimum loss) from this service. 

Full commercial with 
discounts 

As above, but with discounted concessions being 
given to enable disadvantaged groups to access 
the service. 

Fair charging The council seeks to maximise income but subject 
to a defined policy constraint.  This could include a 
commitment made to potential customers on an 
appropriate fee structure.  Alternatively, a full 
commercial rate may not be determinable or the 
council may be a monopoly supplier of services. 

Cost recovery The council wishes to make the service generally 
available, but does not wish to allocate its own 
resources to the service. 

Cost recovery with discounts As above, but the council is prepared to subsidise 
the service to ensure disadvantaged groups have 
access to the service. 

Subsidised Council policy is to make the service widely 
accessible, but believe users of the service should 
make some contribution from their own resources.  
Could also be due to the adverse impact a cost 
recovery or commercial charging policy would have 
on other council services. 

Nominal The council wishes the service to be fully available, 
but sets a charges to discourage frivolous usage. 

Free Council policy is to make the service fully available. 

Statutory Charges are set in line with legal obligations. 

Page 28



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4. SUBSIDIES AND CONCESSIONS 
 
4.1. It might be appropriate to consider subsidising some services, particularly if 

this helps to achieve corporate priorities and supports local strategies and 
policies.  The main reasons for charging less than full cost are set out below; 

 

• There is a sound financial and policy justification for the council tax 
payers subsidising this service. 

• The desire to encourage particular sections of the community to use 
specific services, and they could not afford, or might otherwise be 
deterred by, full cost charges. 

• Charging full cost discourages or prevent uptake, which may have a 
detrimental impact on the council’s finances in the long run. 

CHARGING POLICY POLICY OBJECTIVE 
Full commercial • Are the charges high enough for the service to 

be profitable?  If not, consider whether the 
service should be provided. 

• Are competitors charging similar prices? 

• Does the council offer any premium in terms of 
service levels that customers would be prepared 
to pay more for? 

• How would changes in pricing structures affect 
demand for the service and potentially its 
profitability? 

• How does the proposed fee structure fit in with 
the long-term business plan for the service? 

Fair charging • How do the charges compare to other providers 
of similar services? 

• Has the loss of income from not charging on a 
commercial basis been evaluated? 

• Is the policy constraint justifying this charging 
policy still valid? 

Cost recovery • Do charges recover the full costs, including 
overheads, capital charges and recharges? 

• Is it possible to charge on a full commercial 
basis and if so has the loss of income from not 
charging on a full commercial basis been 
evaluated? 

• Are Members aware of the effect on demand for 
this service from this charging policy? 

• What would be the effect of changing the policy 
to a different one e.g. subsidised?  

Subsidised • Has the cost of the subsidy been evaluated? 

• What has been the impact on demand and on 
service levels from adopting this approach? 

• Does this approach fit in with the requirements 
of other funding streams i.e. grants? 

• Is this approach legally required? 

• Is there a problem of frivolous use of the 
service? 

Nominal 

Free 

Statutory • Are charges in line with statutory requirements? 

• Are they set at the maximum permitted levels? 

Page 29



• Use of the service is sensitive to a change in price – an increase in 
charges reduces demand and income. 

• The council incurs higher costs than other providers because the 
service is provided in a way that is appropriate and accessible for all 
sectors of the community. 

 
4.2. When considering using a subsidy, the following points should be taken into 

account; 
 

• That it supports a corporate priority, objective, or policy. 

• There is evidence to suggest that the impact of the policy can be 
measured. 

• The cost of the subsidy can be estimated and accommodated within 
the council’s budget. 

• That the proposal is the most effective approach available to deliver 
the policy objective. 

 
4.3. It is recognised that in some circumstances discounts may not be appropriate 

and that, in all cases, it will be necessary to carefully consider the impact on 
income before introducing discounts or concessions to service areas which 
do not currently offer them. 

 
5. NEW FEES AND CHARGES 
 
5.1. Proposals for new fees and charges must be considered within the financial 

planning process or, where necessary, submitted to Cabinet for approval as 
an in-year change. 

 
5.2. Proposals for new fees and charges should be analysed using the guidance 

in the appendix to this policy.  This effectively provides a brief rationale and 
business case for the proposed charge. 

 
5.3. The effects of any new charge on service usage and income generated will 

be monitored regularly over the first 12 months and reviewed within the 
Performance Management framework. 

 
6. REVIEWING FEES AND CHARGES 
 
6.1. Service Heads must consider charging policies and current levels of charge 

each year as part of the service and financial planning process.  The 
presumption is that the value of fees and charges will be maintained in real 
terms over time and increased annually in line with inflation as set within the 
service and financial planning process. 

 
6.2. If there are any significant changes in the course of a year, such as in cost, 

market forces or service levels, which materially affect current charges and 
revenues, then that charge should be reviewed and any change approved by 
Cabinet or through delegated authority as an in-year change. 

 
Annual review of fees and charges 
 

6.3. Service Heads should review the charge and anticipated yield from fees and 
charges in sufficient time to be able to influence the annual budget process. 

 

Page 30



6.4. As part of this process, the Head of Financial Services will determine the 
percentage rate for “typical” fees and charges increases.  Additionally, 
Cabinet may decide to set income targets for specific service areas as part of 
an effort to identify efficiencies and/or generate additional income. 

 
6.5. Service Heads will review existing fees and charges in line with this policy 

and the financial planning process.  Any proposal to significantly amend an 
existing fee or charge will require a full justification and explanation to be 
provided.   

 
7. COLLECTION OF FEES AND CHARGES 
 
7.1. In line with the Debt Management Policy, wherever it is reasonable to do so, 

charges will be collected either in advance or at the point of service delivery.  
Where charges are to be collected after service delivery has commenced, 
invoices will be issued promptly, and as necessary appropriate recovery 
procedures followed. 

 
8. RECORDING OF FEES AND CHARGES 
 
8.1. Each service should maintain a schedule of fees and charges levied.  This 

schedule should include, but identify separately, those charges where there 
are national / external procedures or other specific procedures for determining 
and reviewing rates of charge.   

 
8.2. The council’s fees and charges are set prior to each financial year.  They are 

widely published including the council’s website, and consist of a schedule of 
charges across each service area. 

 
8.3. Reasonable notice should be given to service users before any decisions to 

amend or introduce new fees and charges are implemented, together with 
clear advice on VAT, together with any discounts or concessions available.  
Reasonable notice is defined as one calendar month. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



Annex A 

 

GUIDANCE FOR NEW FEES AND CHARGES 

 

Charging Policy 

The charging policy objectives must be stated here, together with why this policy (Full 
Commercial or Fair Charging etc.) has been adopted.  The intended aims of the 
charges should also be clearly thought out and explained.  Any legal issues should 
be identified. 

 

Comparative Information 

Include here details of comparative information collected from other authorities or 
competitors etc. 

 

Financial 

Information Required Description 

Level of charge Recommended or proposed new level of 
charge. 

Start date Proposed implementation date for new 
level of charge, although it could be 
related to a future event. 

Budgeted income  Level of income to be generated from the 
new charge. 

Surplus / deficit as a percentage of cost The total cost of supplying the service 
(including recharges and other 
overheads) should be calculated and 
deducted from the income generated.  
This surplus or deficit should then be 
compared to the total cost as a 
percentage.  Calculating total cost may 
require the use of judgement and 
reasonable assumptions.  This is 
acceptable, so long as a clear audit trail 
of those assumptions is maintained. 

Surplus / deficit per usage The difference between income 
generated and the total cost of providing 
that service, divided by the expected 
number of users of that service. 

 

Impact Assessment 

Any proposals must identify likely impact on the service’s users including; who 
currently benefits from the service, the effects on them of any changes and who will 
benefit from new exemptions and discounts together with how demand and usage is 
expected to change.  Equality issues must specifically be considered and reported. 

 
Impact on Other Areas 

The likely consequences in terms of reduced or increased demand for other council 
services must be identified here as well as any extra costs to other services.  Equality 
issues must specifically be considered and reported. 

 
 
 
 

Page 32



Method of Collection 

Proposals for new charges must identify what collection methods will be used.  If this 
is a change in current arrangements it will need to identify the following: 

• What the likely impact is on the rate and costs of collection; 

• What account has been taken of how long low income users can pay; and 

• How cost effective will the new methods be? 

 
Alternatives 

Explain here the other measures that have been considered instead of, or as well as, 
the proposed charge (cost cutting, reducing charges, sponsorship etc.). 

 
Consultation 

Include here the extent of consultation conducted, which will be dependent upon the 
impact of fee and/or charge, and the results of that consultation. 

 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Page 1 of 9

                                                                                                             APPENDIX 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STRATEGY FOR APPLYING AND 

SETTING FEES & CHARGES FOR 

SERVICES 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Woking Borough Council 
Civic Offices 
Gloucester Square 
Woking 
Surrey 
GU21 6YL 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Created by: David Johnson – Corporate Strategy Manager - August 2009 
Approved by: Council date: 10 December 2009 

Reviewed September 2011 
Contact for more information: Corporate Strategy 

Page 35



 

 Page 2 of 9

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. Local Authority charging is a complex area, with charges for some services set at a 
national level and charges for other services prohibited altogether.  The Local 
Government Act of 2003 gave councils the general power to charge for discretionary 
services that are not covered by other legislation.  The purpose of this Strategy is to 
ensure that where Woking Borough Council has the discretion to set service fees and 
charges, there is a transparent, fair and consistent approach. 

1.2. The recent Audit Commission Report ‘Positively Charged’ in 2008 suggests that 
nationally councils are currently not employing fees and charges to their maximum 
potential.  Woking Borough Council wishes to optimise fair income opportunities that 
are directly linked to service planning and delivery.  This Strategy outlines the guiding 
principles to be employed when setting and reviewing fees and charges.  A decision 
tree (reference guide) setting out the process of applying the key guiding principles is 
at the end of the Strategy. 

2. CHARGES SHOULD SEEK TO OPTIMISE POTENTIAL INCOME  

2.1. First and foremost, the Council shall establish for all services whether legislation or 
statute permits it to apply a fee or charge for that service to the ‘customer’ or end user 
or whether any legislation exists expressly prohibiting a fee or charge. Where 
permitted, the Council needs to decide whether it wishes to apply a charge and, if not, 
how the service will be funded.  

2.2. Where charges are employed they should be used to their optimum potential as an 
essential tool in generating income, to develop capacity, service improvements and 
efficiencies.   

2.3. All fees and charges should aim to cover at least the full cost of the service, whereby 
the full cost includes overheads, capital costs, indirect costs such as support services 
and costs of collection. 

2.4. Due regard should be given to statutory and regulatory limitations set at a national 
level.  The Local Government Act 2003 outlines that income from discretionary charges 
must not exceed the costs of their provision.  However, there is flexibility on how to 
calculate the costs of provisions, the period over which recovery is assessed and how 
far services can be grouped to assess cost recovery.  The provisions of the CIPFA 
Best Value Code of Accounting Practice should be followed. 

2.5. If there is a general legal power to charge within a service area, it will often be possible 
to set a charge for a particular initiative which exceeds costs, on the basis that the 
income generated from that initiative will contribute towards reducing the costs of 
providing the service as a whole, to the benefit of the Council and the taxpayer.  An 
example of this can be seen in car parking, whereby resulting surpluses from car 
parking charges may be reinvested in transport related provisions and services. 

2.6. Once a fee/charge has been agreed and set for a service, those charges should only 
be altered or subsidised where there is a clear, conscious and agreed decision to do 
so, within the context of this Strategy, and the financial consequences have been 
thoroughly considered, including how any shortfall will be funded – see Paragraph 5.  
Charges for commercial operations or those services provided by commercial 
operators on behalf of the Council should aim to achieve/recover full cost of provision.  
Finance managers should ensure that the income from charges and the level of 

Page 36



 

 Page 3 of 9

subsidy that this provides for service areas is transparent for councillors and informs 
the decision making process. 

3. CHARGES SHOULD CONTRIBUTE TOWARDS THE ACHIEVEMENT OF 
CORPORATE AND SERVICE OBJECTIVES 

3.1. The purpose for charging should be clear and transparent.  Councillors and managers 
should fully understand the non-financial contribution of charging to service and 
strategic objectives, plus place shaping in general.   

3.2. Woking Borough Council’s current key priorities are: 

a) Decent and affordable housing (We are working to create access to decent 
and affordable housing for local people and key workers) 

b) Economic Development (We are working to support existing and encourage 
new businesses to the Borough to encourage a balanced and varied economy 
and grow employment opportunities) 

c) The Environment (We are working to maintain a clean, healthy and safe 
environment.  We are keen to minimise waste, increase recycling and reduce 
the environmental impact of landfill.  We are also working on reducing 
greenhouse gases and adapting to climate change) 

d) Health and Wellbeing (We are working towards integrated and accessible 
local facilities and services to encourage the health and well-being of all 
members of the community). 

 

3.3. The priorities and focus of the Executive during 2011/12 are: 

a) Waste and Recycling 

b) Affordable Housing 

c) Economic Vitality 

d) Facilities for children and young people 

e) Community buildings 

f) Pride of Place and Community Safety 

g) Finance 

h) Health & well-being 

i) Environment. 
 

3.4. Under these key headings, there will be a number of service objectives that a well 
priced charging structure may contribute towards, such as those outlined below. 

 
Fees and charges may be used as a tool to: 

a. Further the achievement of key priority objectives, for example encourage 
healthy living through the charging policy for leisure services.  Another 
example might be to operate a facilities hire charging policy that offers lower 
rates to organised groups who are more aligned with the Council’s strategic 
priorities. 

b. Modify behaviour in line with environmental policies, for example offer lower 
season ticket fees based on lower carbon emission rates and set higher car 

Page 37



 

 Page 4 of 9

parking rates at peak times to decrease congestion and encourage the use of 
greener transport.   

c. Contribute towards the equalities agenda by encouraging the use of a service 
where take up is under represented, for example by subsidising users who 
have low incomes or are minority groups.  An example of this might involve 
offering facility hire discounts to ethnic minority groups to encourage their 
participation. 

d. Support local economic prosperity through differential charging between 
residents and non residents (for example libraries may charge commercial 
internet access rates for non-library members) or by operating special events 
schemes (for example by offering free car parking on certain days to 
encourage visits to shops). 

e. Further the Community Strategy agenda through discounts for local or 
frequent users, encouraging community participation and loyalty/take up of 
service. 

3.5. Where subsidies are provided, there should be a rationale behind them in line with 
corporate priorities and financial realities.  Long term investment strategies should 
focus on high cash earners, in order to subsidise other areas as desired. 

4. BENCHMARKING – CHARGES SHOULD TAKE INTO ACCOUNT MARKET 
CONDITIONS AND COMMERCIAL VIABILITY 

4.1. Wherever possible, charges should be benchmarked with the public, private and 
voluntary sectors.  Benchmarking should take into account not only the level of charges 
made for services, but the full costs of service delivery.  

4.2. Variable market factors such as demographics, policy priorities and quality/quantity of 
service provision will cause some differences between charges, but these reasons 
should be understood and validated.   

4.3. The availability of alternatives and perceptions of value for money will affect income 
received from charging.  Charges should take into account their effect on behaviour, for 
example an inappropriately low charge may result in overuse or abuse of the service 
whereas an increased charge may not increase income if usage drops.  A careful 
analysis of supply and demand should be undertaken to ensure optimum income in line 
with price sensitivity associated with a service.  The quality matrix below may be 
considered when developing competitive pricing: 

 
ECONOMY 

(Low quality, low price) 
PENETRATION 

(High quality, artificially low price to 
encourage market development) 

SKIMMING 
(Low quality, high price initially but 
becomes lower over time to match 

market)  

PREMIUM 
(High quality, high price – unique 

product/service) 

4.4. Flexibility is essential.  During the course of the year between the annual review of fees 
and charges by Council, Business Managers are empowered to review and, if 
appropriate, change their pricing structure in accordance with changing circumstances, 
in consultation with Financial Services, the relevant Portfolio holder and the Leader of 
the Executive. Where new services are offered and there is no market comparison or 
benchmark, flexibility to quickly revise and amend fees & charges in the light of 

Page 38



 

 Page 5 of 9

experience needs to be explicit.  In no circumstances may fees and charges be set 
above the level agreed by the Council, without reference back to and the express 
consent of the Council. 

5. ACCESSIBILITY – CHARGES SHOULD TAKE INTO ACCOUNT THE ABILITY OF 
DIFFERENT USERS TO PAY 

5.1. Before considering subsidised charges, the financial implications should be carefully 
reviewed with due regard given towards how proposed discounts/concessions will be 
funded, for example whether other users from the same service will pay for it, or 
council taxpayers generally. 

5.2. There should be a direct link between the concession and the policy objective that it is 
designed to contribute towards.   

5.3. Concessions for services should follow a logical and consistent pattern with an 
overarching rationale on which groups/individuals qualify for concessions across 
service areas.  Audit Commission guidance for the public sector highlights the need to 
target subsidies more robustly on the ability to pay, rather than wider status 
concessions groups.   

5.4. The eligibility criteria will need to be carefully considered and reviewed over time, for 
example a means tested concession will need to keep up to date with new benefits that 
the government has introduced.  Proof of eligibility should be obtained in an efficient 
manner and duplication should be avoided, for example service users should not have 
to provide identical information to separate council service areas. The use of Contact 
Manager should avoid this.   

5.5. See Appendix 1 for potential groupings which may be considered for different 
rates/concessions. 

6. DIFFERENTIATION – CHARGES SHOULD TAKE INTO ACCOUNT DIFFERENT 
LEVELS OF SERVICE  

6.1. Charges should be based on added and perceived value, as well as cost. Tiered 
charges should be implemented in line with the level of service provided and the 
demand on Council resources.   

6.2. For example, in Elections Services a charge can be issued for residents requesting a 
letter as proof of residence – if information is held electronically and can be easily 
retrieved, it may be appropriate to charge at a flat level, but if information requires 
manual checking of several different registers, it may be appropriate to charge at a 
higher rate to reflect the greater demand placed on Council resources.  Another 
example might be reflected in local land searches, whereby different charges could be 
levied for a basic search fee or for a quicker, expedited search.   

6.3. Different charging levels may also be applied related to the condition of facilities and 
quality of service experience expected. 
 

Page 39



 

 Page 6 of 9

7. CONSULTATION – FEES & CHARGES SHOULD TAKE INTO ACCOUNT THE 
VIEWS OF SERVICE USERS (AND SEEK TO MINIMISE THE IMPACT OF NEW OR 
SIGNIFICANTLY INCREASED CHARGES ON THEM) AND NON-USERS AT 
COUNCIL LEVEL 

7.1. Service managers should engage more with service users and tax payers (non-users) 
to involve them in decisions about whether to charge for services and at what level to 
do it.  Charges and the reasons for them should be clearly communicated to the public. 

7.2. Fees and charges should be sensitive to service users, to ensure that they do not 
switch to other services or stop using a service altogether.  Consultations should be 
undertaken, in conjunction with research into historic trends and reactions to charges. 

7.3. At a Council level (rather than service or Business Area) consultation on applying and 
setting fees & charges should be undertaken with non-users and Council Tax payers 
more widely. This can be used to understand why people don’t use a particular service 
and assess Council Tax payers’ views on subsidising others. This will become more 
relevant/necessary when the requirement for ‘participatory budgeting’ is introduced by 
2012. 

7.4. The impact of charging should be analysed from both a corporate and an individual 
perspective.  When analysing the financial impact of charging on users, service 
managers should consider the cumulative effect of different service charges on 
individuals and households (for example, by using the Audit Commission’s Household 
Charges Calculator).   

7.5. The economic impact of charging should also be considered, in order to best support 
local business and industry.  To ensure stability and predictability, if the impact of 
charging is high, solutions such as phased pricing policies should be employed. 

8. SERVICES SHOULD SEEK TO MINIMISE THE COSTS OF COLLECTION 

8.1. Service fees & charges and the ways in which they can be paid/collected should be 
transparent to users. The costs of collection should be minimised wherever possible 
and should be proportionate to the level of income raised.   

8.2. Alternative payment methods should be offered to users with incentives to use the 
most efficient method, for example electronic payment. 

8.3. Early payment should be encouraged.  Advance payment should be presented as 
either the only option or should be incentivised through discounts, for example where 
applicable, casual prices should be relatively high whilst annual prices should be 
reduced. 

8.4. A tough stance should be taken on fee dodging. Other service users and council tax 
payers should not be expected to subsidise users who are evading charges for a 
service they receive. Service managers should ensure that the Council’s debt recovery 
procedures are properly followed and enforced.  Information about which users are 
accumulating debt/arrears should be shared between service managers.   

8.5. Even where charges are restricted or have a set statutory level, service managers can 
influence performance by ensuring that all service users are assessed properly, pay 
promptly and that this is backed up by high quality and transparent accountancy and 
administration.   

Page 40



 

 Page 7 of 9

8.6. Block booking of facilities/services, where appropriate, is encouraged and full payment 
should be made in advance (up front). Refunds should not be made where the 
facility/service is not used unless, cancellation/termination is made in advance and a 
sliding scale of cancellation/termination charges would apply depending on the notice 
given.  

9. CHARGES SHOULD BE REGULARLY REVIEWED, ON AT LEAST AN ANNUAL 
BASIS 

9.1. As corporate, service and financial objectives change, the fees & charges and criteria 
associated should also be reviewed on at least an annual basis.  Reviews should take 
into account changing market conditions, legislation changes, patterns of service use, 
benchmarking and other variable costs. 

9.2. Evaluation of whether the objectives of specific charges have been met should take 
place.  Service managers should where possible collect and use information on who is 
and is not using services and how service users and non-service users respond to 
changes in service charges. 

9.3. Where charges are not made for a service, or are reduced from full cost recovery level, 
the reasons should be reconsidered as part of an annual review to ensure that they 
remain valid and that significant income is not being foregone.  

9.4. When new charges are proposed, the purpose of the charge should be set out and the 
proposal should be assessed against this policy.  A risk analysis and equalities impact 
assessment should be accompanied by a financial appraisal, which should show the 
full cost of the service, the proposed charge and the income which it is estimated the 
charge will generate. This should include recommendations for any exemptions and 
concessions.  Where appropriate, the proposal should also show the results of any 
consultation with service users and the possible impact of the proposed charge on the 
council and taxpayers. 

9.5. An Action Plan and key policy concepts will be incorporated into this Strategy. These 
are currently outlined in the background papers and subject to further discussion. 

 
 

Page 41



 

 Page 8 of 9

SUMMARY FLOW CHART / DECISION TREE OF GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR APPLYING 
AND SETTING FEES & CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

 

For ‘new’ charges (new charge or new chargeable service) the decision tree will be used in 
full. For the annual or other review of existing charges a ‘light touch’ can be used to ensure 
the level and basis for the charge is still relevant and appropriate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

YES 

� 

 
 
 
 

� 

 
 
 

YES 

� 

 
� 

 
� 

 
� 

 
� 

 
� 

 
 

� 
 
 
 
 
 

4) CHARGES SHOULD CONTRIBUTE TOWARDS KEY CORPORATE 

AND SERVICE OBJECTIVES 

5) BENCHMARKING – CHARGES SHOULD TAKE INTO ACCOUNT 

MARKET CONDITIONS/COMMERCIAL VIABILITY  

6) ACCESSIBILITY – CHARGES SHOULD TAKE INTO ACCOUNT THE 

ABILITY OF DIFFERENT USERS TO PAY 

7) DIFFERENTIATION – CHARGES SHOULD TAKE INTO ACCOUNT 

DIFFERENT LEVELS OF SERVICE  

8) CONSULTATION – CHARGES SHOULD TAKE INTO ACCOUNT THE 

VIEWS OF SERVICE USERS 

9) SERVICES SHOULD SEEK TO MINIMISE THE COSTS OF 

COLLECTION  

10) CHARGES AND THE BASIS FOR THEM SHOULD BE REVIEWED AT 

LEAST ANNUALLY 

1) CAN & SHOULD A CHARGE BE MADE FOR SERVICE OR NOT? 

2) CHARGES SHOULD SEEK TO OPTIMISE POTENTIAL INCOME  

3) ARE THERE ANY REASONS TO ALTER OR DEFER THE OPTIMAL 

FEE/CHARGE? 

Page 42



 

 Page 9 of 9

Appendix 1 
 

Potential groupings which may be considered for different rates/concessions. 
 
The objectives is to establish a common criteria/eligibility for when individuals are entitled to 
discounts when using / accessing the Council's Services.  The intention is to use the Key 
Card framework as the initial starting point:- 
  
The Key Card structure for Fees and Charges is as follows:- 
  
Standard (full rate)  - applicable to adults (aged 16 yrs and above) who do not qualify in any 
other groups below. 
  
Status  (discounted rate) - applicable to pre-school, anyone in full time education, aged 60 
and over, in receipt of Disability Living Allowance or on government training scheme. 
  
Concession  (further discounted rate) -  for residents ONLY in receipt of a means-tested 
benefit  - i.e.: Income Support, Working Tax Credit (NHS exemption certificate), Job Seekers 
Allowance (income based), or Pension Credit (guaranteed or savings). 
 
 
Further work will be done to identify individuals or groups as the Strategy develops. This is 
likely to change with circumstances over time. 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



     

                    APPENDIX 4 

 

 

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

 

 

CORPORATE CHARGING POLICY 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Revised: July 2012  

Date of next revision: January 2013 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



     

 

 

 

CONTENTS  

 

 

1. Introduction 

2. Purpose of the Policy 

3. Processes and Frequencies for Reviewing Charges 

4. Factors relevant to the Annual review of Charges 

5. Processes for setting charges for new sources of income  

6. Calculation of Charges 

7. Concessionary Charges   

8. Discounts  

9. Use of Market Intelligence 

 
10. Further Guidance 

 

Page 46



     

 

1. Introduction 

 

This Policy applies to external fees and charges other than those prescribed by the government.  It 

provides a guide to internal charging arrangements but is subject to CIPFA's ‘Best Value Accounting 

Code of Practice’ and has regard to the Audit Commission’s publication “Positively Charged”. 

 

It is not intended to apply to the disposal of Council assets, rents, internal charges or rechargeable 

works, nor will it apply where charges are governed by statutory regulation or guidance. 

 

The Policy does apply if we have discretion, but not if there is a prescribed fixed charge.  

 

Over the period of the Medium Term Financial Plan 2012/13 to 2016/17 services will align their 

charges and processes with this policy.  

 

This policy must be read in conjunction with the other related Council polices and strategies, 

including Financial Regulations, Equalities Policy, VFM Strategy, Community Strategy, Corporate 

Plan. 

 

If after reading this Code you require further guidance or clarification, or you are not sure how best 

to comply with the Policy then please contact your Business Manager or the Director of Resources. 

2. Purpose of the Policy 

 

To establish a policy within which fee and charge levels will support the Medium Term Financial 

Strategy and Corporate Plan, and, 

 

To encourage a consistent approach to the setting and reviewing of charges for services provided by 

Newark and Sherwood District Council by: 

 

• specifying the processes and frequencies for reviewing existing charging levels or 

introducing new charges for areas of the council’s work for which charges could in principle 

be set; 

 

• providing guidance on the factors that need to be taken into consideration when charges 

are reviewed on an annual basis; 

 

• establishing parameters for calculating different levels of charges; 

 

• recommending the criteria for applying concessions or discounted charges on a consistent 

council wide basis;  

 

• requiring more active use of market intelligence relating to different services. 

3. Processes and Frequencies for Reviewing Charges 

 

The following arrangements for reviewing charges will be applied throughout all areas of the Council 

where charges for services already exist or could in principle be set: 

 

• all discretionary charges will be considered and approved by Council as part of the Budget 

and Council Tax setting process in March of each year. 

Page 47



     

 

•  a major review of each business unit’s charging strategy will take place at least once every 

three years to ensure consistency with the council’s priorities, policy framework, service 

aims, market sensitivity, customer preferences, and income generation needs, and the 

justification for any subsidy that the council as a whole makes to the service.  

 

• annual reviews will be carried out for all of these services as part of the budget process, and 

shall have regard for the budget strategy approved in September each year. 

 

• where fees are not to be increased or are proposed to be increased below inflation, this 

must be reported to CMT by the budget officer clearly stating the financial implications and 

budget shortfall before the deadline for completion of the revenue budget. 

 

• these formal reviews will be overseen by the appropriate Director. 

 

• where decisions on fees and charges, including any concessions or discounts are taken 

outside the budget process approved by CMT and Cabinet is required and any proposals 

must have due regard to the Medium Term Financial Plan. 

4. Factors relevant to the Annual review of Charges 

 

Annual reviews of charges will consider the following factors: 

 

a. inflationary pressures generally and input costs specific to the service; 

 

b. the actual or potential impact of any competition in terms of price or quality; 

 

c. trends in user demand and the forecast effect of price changes; 

 

d. equality and access to services; 

 

e. customer survey results; 

 

f. benchmarking results; 

 

g. council wide and service budget targets;   

 

h. cost structure implications arising from developments such as investments made in the 

service; 

 

i. consistency with other charges; 

 

j. alternative charging structures that could be more effective; 

 

k. validity of continuing any concessions;  

 

l. proposals for targeted promotions during the year, and evaluation of any that took place in 

the previous year; 

 

Page 48



     

m. where less than the full cost is being recovered (including nil charges), the justification for 

the decision is reviewed and documented to ensure that this decision remains valid and that 

significant income is not being lost.  

5. Processes for setting charges for new sources of income 

 

All Business Managers should explore new business opportunities with a view to generating 

additional income.  

 

All guidance in this Policy must be considered when setting new fees and charges.  

 

A business plan must be prepared. 

 

Any potential new income streams will need to be approved by CMT and Cabinet.  

 

The proposed billing and recovery administrative process must be agreed with the S151 officer prior 

to the charges being implemented. 

 

The setting of the fee and charges must be made in accordance with the current VAT regulations. 

 

A central record will be maintained by the relevant Business Manager of any decisions made not to 

charge for a service where a charge could be made.  

6. Calculation of Charges   

 

Charges will apply to all users, and will be set at a level to maximise take-up and income targets and 

wherever possible covering or exceeding the full cost of providing the service in question. Any 

subsidy arising from standard charges being set at a level below full cost should be fully justified in 

terms of achieving the Council’s priorities.  

 

It is the responsibility of the Business Manager to ensure that the proposals comply with the 

appropriate legal framework and any legal restrictions. Advice should be taken from the Council’s 

Legal section before any proposal is finalised.  

 

This calculation of full cost should be based on the direct cost of service provision including staff, 

supplies and services, equipment, premise costs.  Overheads and capital asset depreciation charges 

should be included but consideration may be given to a less than full cost recovery of these 

elements where inclusion would distort competition.  

 

Where less than the full cost is being recovered, the justification for the decision must be 

documented and retained by the appropriate Head of Service and clearly state the financial 

implications and budget shortfall. 

 

All fees and charges must be calculated in accordance with the current V.A.T.  regulations.  

7. Concessionary Charges 

 

In some circumstances the Council will offer subsidies to all users or concessions to specific user 

groups where this is consistent with achieving its priorities.  

 

Page 49



     

Entitlement to Concessionary Charges must have regard to equalities legislation and is designed to 

reduce barriers to participation arising from: 

 

• Age; 

• Level of income; 

• Family circumstances; 

• Health 

• Educational circumstances. 

 

Concessions will not apply to retail sales from shops or cafes. 

 

Concessionary Charges may also be made available to organisations whose purpose is to assist the 

Council in meeting specific objectives in its priorities and policy framework, or which contribute to 

the aims of key local partnerships in which the Council has a leading role. 

 

Concessionary Charges should not normally apply to peak times or in situations that would result in 

the loss of income from customers paying Standard Charges.  Neither would they normally be 

available to organisations that are based outside of the Council’s area other than on a reciprocal 

basis. 

 

Only one concession can be applied to the Standard Charge at any given time. 

 

Services wishing to adopt a concessionary charging scheme must demonstrate the scheme is 

practicable in terms of assessment, collection and evidencing for audit purposes. 

8. Discounts  

 

For certain services it will be normal practice to set Promotional Discounts, Frequent User Discounts 

or Group Discounts. 

 

Promotional Discounts are defined as short-term charges that are targeted to increase take-up or 

awareness of the services that are available. 

 

Frequent User Discounts are to be used only for commercial reasons such as generating customer 

loyalty where alternative provision from competitors exists, and where market analysis shows a real 

risk of reduced income if they are not offered.   

 

Group Discounts are to be used to encourage take up by organisations able to block book and Family 

Discounts to encourage parents and children’s take up.    

 

Discounts can be applied to both the Standard Charge and the Concessionary Charge.  

 

Discounts can only be applied where the Service has received prior approval of the principle to apply 

a discount to the charge for this service. 

9. The Use of Market Intelligence 

 

All managers of discretionary services for which a charge is made should take steps to identify 

competitors offering similar or related services, and make use of comprehensive and dynamic 

market intelligence in evaluating: 

 

Page 50



     

• their charging strategy; 

• the range of services provided; 

• the quality of services provided; 

• their cost structure. 

 

All managers of services for which a charge is made should consult with customers, relevant 

partners and stakeholders on the range, quality and cost of services provided prior to the triennial 

review. 

 

Consultation should also take place with potential customers and target groups to determine 

improvements needed to encourage participation at least every five years. 

 

Comprehensive and accurate usage statistics will be maintained for all services and at all facilities 

where charges are made, to enable analysis of usage, justification of any subsidy given by the 

Council, and accurate forecasting of the effect of price changes on usage. 

 

Benchmarking should be undertaken at least annually regularly with other Councils in the local area 

and with relevant national groupings of authorities, to ensure that charges are at comparable levels 

and that significant differences are understood and justified. 

 

10. Further Guidance 

 

Charges should be payable in advance wherever possible or collected by direct debit or through the 

corporate income system. 

 

All fees/charges must be reported annually to the Financial Services Business Unit as part of the 

budget process for publishing in the annual budget book.   

 

All fees/charges must be published on the Councils website. 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

Report to: Budget Panel 

Date of meeting: 11th September 2012 

Report of: Head of Strategic Finance  

Title: Summary of the Financial Outturn 2011/ 2012 
 
 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This report informs the Budget Panel of the revenue and capital outturns for 
2011/2012 and will subsequently be reported to Cabinet on 17th September. 
 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 To consider the revenue outturn as summarised at Appendix 1, and supplementary 
notes at Appendices 1A to 1G and to note that an over spend of £251k has occurred 
before end of year final account adjustments.  
 

2.2 
 
 
 

To note that specific unspent budgets have been carried forward into 2012/2013 in 
the sum of £301,337 and as detailed at Appendix 1E. 

2.3 
 
 

To consider the Reserves statements at Appendices 1F & 1G and note that, due to 
end of year adjustments the overall level of reserves has increased by £1,230,408 
(Appendix 1F). It is also recommended that the Capital Fund Reserve should be 
increased by £287k with a compensating reduction to the Economic Impact Reserve. 
This recommendation will require formal Cabinet approval and the Panel has the 
opportunity to comment if it so wishes. 
 

2.4 
 
 

To consider the capital outturn as detailed at Appendix 2 and note that the Council’s 
present and future holding of capital receipts is virtually fully committed. 

 
 
 
Contact Officer: 
For further information on this report please contact Bernard Clarke, Head of 
Strategic Finance, telephone extension 8189, email bernard.clarke@watford.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 7

Page 53



 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION 

 
3.1 A key feature of the reporting of the Final Outturn for any financial year is to 

compare the actual position with the original estimate and forecast budget 
monitoring statements produced throughout the year. This comparison is essential 
as it provides an indication of the accuracy and robustness of financial control 
within the Council.   
 

3.2 It is important as part of that process that guidance is provided, as a simple 
comparison will not necessarily present a fair reflection of a constantly evolving 
situation. This report will hopefully provide a meaningful analysis of the revenue 
and capital outturns for 2011/2012. The more technical detail of the Final Outturn 
is reflected within the audited Statement of Accounts that will be reported to the 
Audit Committee on 25th September 2012. 
 

4.0 ORIGINAL ESTIMATES 2011/2012 
 

4.1 The original revenue estimates were approved by Council on 26th January 2011 
and have been summarised at Appendix 1 and indicated net General Fund 
expenditure of £14,581k.  
 

  
5.0 BUDGET MONITORING: THE FINANCE DIGEST 

 
5.1 Watford Council has a well developed budget monitoring system which compares 

original estimates with a forecast end of year financial outturn. The first report for 
2011/2012 covered the first four months expenditure and income and was 
considered by the Budget Panel at its meeting on 20th September 2011 and 
comprised an explanatory report with a detailed Finance Digest.  
    

5.2 During 2011/2012 monthly budget forecasts were considered by the Leadership 
Team, Budget Panel, quarterly reports were produced for Cabinet and copies of 
the Finance Digest were circulated to all members of the Council. 
 

5.3 The last budget monitoring report / Finance Digest for 2011/ 2012 covered the 11 
month period up to the end of February 2012. The position for the end of year 
(Month 12) is always delayed somewhat because it needs to be the final outturn 
and should include accountancy issues such as accruals; requests for carry 
forwards; review of bad debts provisions etc. 
 

5.4 The key features of the Month 11 budget monitor included: 
 

• a forecast outturn of £15,575k, reduced by : 

• the use of £475k from earmarked reserves 

• the use/ overspend of £519k from the Economic Impact Reserve 
  

5.5 A summary of the Month 11 forecast is attached at Appendix 1.  
 

6.0 SUMMARISED REVENUE OUTTURN 2011/2012 
 

6.1 Appendix 1 summarises the actual variances and actual outturn for 2011/2012 
when compared to the Original Estimate and Budget Monitor/ Finance Digest and 
indicates a General Fund Outturn of £14,832k (an overspend of £251k).   

Page 54



 

 
6.2 Appendix 1A provides a simple overview of the major variances that actually 

occurred and also informs the Budget Panel of the end of year position for 
Reserves and finally the Capital Outturn.  
 

6.3 The underlying £251k overspend is actually an extremely good situation as the 
Budget panel had previously received reports highlighting adverse pressures that 
included: 
                                                                                     £k 
* Commercial rents/ market Income shortfall              597 
* Homelessness additional costs                                150 
* Service prioritisation- shortfall in savings                 239 
* Shared Services additional operating costs             190  
 
Credit must be attributed to Heads of Service and Portfolio holders in managing to 
mitigate to a great extent these adverse pressures. 
 

  
7.0 ANALYSIS OF DETAILED VARIATIONS,  RESERVES & BALANCES 

 
7.1 Appendices 1B/ 1C/ & 1D analyses the salaries and agency outturn and other 

service major variations. 
Appendix 1E details those unspent balances that Leadership Team recommend 
should be carried forward to 2012/2013 and is typically due to a delay in carrying 
out an initiative, Should Cabinet not approve this recommendation then the over 
spend of £251k would actually translate into an under spend of £50k but would put 
subsequent pressure upon the 2012/2013 revenue budget. 
 

7.2 Appendices 1F & 1G detail the end of year position regarding the Council’s 
holding of reserves and balances and indicate an increase of £1,230k and is 
further discussed at Appendices 1A and 1G. 
Appendix 1G also includes a recommendation that the Capital Fund Reserve be 
increased by £287k with the Economic Impact Reserve reducing by a 
compensating amount.  

 
7.3 The appropriate level of reserves to be held by the Council will be considered 

within the Medium Term Financial Strategy to be reported to the Budget Panel at 
its next meeting on 23rd October 2012.  
 

8.0 
 

CAPITAL OUTTURN 2011/2012  

8.1 A detailed analysis of the council’s capital programme has been attached at 
Appendix 2. The main features (as summarised on the final page) include: 
 

• an outturn spend (including Section 106) of                     £10,066k 

• an anticipated total spend in 2012/ 2013 of                      £12,293k  

• further programmed expenditure in 2013/2015 of            £12,451k 

• that uncommitted capital receipts will have reduced to    £     922k   
 
 

8.2 The headline figures at paragraph 8.1 do not make provision for any new projects 
to be included within the capital programme. The holding of capital receipts has 
also assumed new receipts of £5.5m (General) and £0.775m (Section 106) will be 
realised within the three year period 2012/2015.  

Page 55



 

      
9.0 CONCLUSION 

 
9.1 The 2011/2012 revenue outturn represents a good result against a national 

background of an economy at best ‘flat’ and potentially slightly recessionary. This 
has affected Watford Council both through its commercial rent income and 
through pressures upon its homelessness budget. The underlying trend of 
expenditure indicates a £251k overspend but this was more than compensated by  
favourable variances identified as part of Final Accounts closure. 
 

9.2 The net effect has been an increase in the level of the Council’s reserves by 
£1,280k (for the general Fund) and £1,230k when non general fund reserves are 
included. This will provide a much needed ‘buffer’ in the years to come and will be 
discussed in far more detail within the Medium Term Financial Strategy to be 
considered at the next meeting of the Budget Panel. 
 

9.3 With regard to the capital outturn, the Council continues to have an ambitious 
programme which includes ensuring its infrastructure/ assets are well maintained 
as well as seeking to move forward through investment in key projects. It needs to 
be appreciated however that completion of the current programme will effectively 
utilise all capital receipts and this situation will need to be reviewed in due course. 
 

 
10.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
10.1 These have been included within the report. 

 

 
11.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
11.1  

There are no legal implications in the report. 
 
 

 
12.0 POTENTIAL RISKS 
  

Potential Risk Likelihood Impact Overall 
Score 

That the External Auditor finds material 
errors within the Final Accounts process 

       2      4      8 

    

 
 

13.0 EQUALITIES 
 
13.1 

 
There are no equality implications in formally reporting the final outturn for 
2011/2012. 
 

 
 
 

Page 56



                      Revenue and Capital Outturn   2011/2012                    Appendix 1A 

 

Section 1:     Revenue Outturn  

 

The revenue outturn is analysed on two bases: 

 

• How the Outturn compares to the Original Estimate 

• How the Outturn compares to the Finance Digest Forecast at Period 11 

 

Outturn to Original Estimate/ Forecast (before Final Account adjustments)  

 

The Original estimate was   £14,581k 

The Outturn is                     £ 14,832k 

 

An over spend of                     £251k (Forecast at Period 11  £519k overspend) 

 

There are three big numbers that account for this position 

 

• Redundancy/ Pensions Strain: it was originally intended to fund the majority 

of restructuring costs from the Pensions Fund Reserve (there being a limited 

annual provision of £75k for minor staff changes). The actual additional cost 

in 2011/2012 was £479k and, in closing the accounts, it was resolved to fund 

all redundancy costs from within the revenue estimates without recourse to the 

Pension Fund Reserve or the minor contingency provision. This was because 

of the opportunity afforded through capitalising building maintenance (see 

next note) and also because it would be prudent to keep the Pensions Reserve 

at as high a level as possible to meet possible future actuarial valuation issues. 

• Capitalisation of Building Maintenance: at the end of each year we are able to 

ascertain the nature of the Building Maintenance Programme and it is often the 

case that the nature of the work means that it should be capitalised (as an 

improvement). In 2011/12 circa £500k of work has been transferred to the 

capital account and resulted in a £500k saving on the revenue account which 

could then be utilised to meet the restructuring costs referred to above. 

• The revenue accounts across all services (excluding the 2 variations above) 

show a circa £272k overspend, and this is analysed at Appendix 1D (and 

compares with the period 11 Forecast of £519k). 

 

The net effect of these three variations is as follows: 

Redundancy/ Pension Strain                               plus £479k 

Capitalisation of Building Maintenance          minus £500k 

Overspends on Revenue Accounts                    plus  £272k 

 

Net Effect of major variations:                         plus    £251k over spend for the year  

  

 

Salaries and Agency Costs: 

The largest budget of the Council (excluding Housing Benefits) is the salaries and 

agency account and attached at Appendix 1B is the subjective analysis of this cost 

centre. It shows an Original Estimate of £17,260k and an outturn excluding 

redundancies and pension strain of  £17,320k (an overspend of £60k, 0.3%). 

Page 57



 

                                                                                              Appendix 1A continued 
 

This summary includes those staff engaged in the direct provision of Shared Services 

activities but actually on Watford’s payroll (and terms and conditions).  

This is analysed by activity at Appendix 1C and indicates an excellent set of figures 

for all directly run Council services (again redundancy needs to be excluded for a true 

comparison). The one problematic area relates to those staff/ agency employed 

directly on Shared Services activities (but paid through Watford’s payroll) where an 

£472k overspend occurred and will be largely related to revenues and benefits 

activities. This overspend will be transferred into the Shared Services activity cost 

centres to be combined with the staff employed by Three Rivers. The combined total 

will then be recharged back to Watford/ TRDC (broadly 60%/ 40% split) and will be 

shown under Watford’s Strategic Finance estimates.  

 

 

All Major Variations Original Estimate/ Forecast/ Outturn: 

 

Appendix 1D provides an overview of the major variations that actually occurred 

during 2011/2012.   

It shows a very encouraging situation where Heads of Service have been extremely 

proactive in identifying variations during the year. The one weakness has been the 

forecasting of income where the negatives have been identified but not necessarily the 

positives. Listed below are the significant areas of income where this has occurred: 

 

                                                                Forecast period 11                Outturn 

                                                                          £k                                   £k 

 

Housing Managed Properties                          (50)                                  (151) 

Waste re-cycling grant                                    (30)                                    (87)  

Land Charge Search Fees                                 (0)                                    (66) 

Investment Interest                                            0                                      (48) 

 

Housing managed properties is a volatile area to forecast; the waste re-cycling grant is 

dependent upon achieving re-cycling targets and is not known until year end; the land 

charge income was potentially affected by the need to make refunds as a consequence 

of legislative clarification; the investment interest is difficult to predict due to the 

need make end of year final adjustments to ensure interest is accounted for in the 

correct year of account. Nevertheless these areas will be given specific attention 

during 2012/2013. 

 

 

Section 2:  Reserves 

 

Section 1 discussed the ‘true’ underlying variances within the annual revenue 

estimates and indicated a £272k over spend. There has however been a number of 

movements (one offs) to the Council’s level of reserves. By reference to Appendix 1,  

it indicates that £137k was anticipated to be transferred into reserves (£150k minus 

£13k), whereas at outturn £1,280k was transferred into General Fund reserves.  

 

Page 58



                                                                                         Appendix 1A Continued 

 

This  increase broadly comprises:   

                                                                                                                        £k 

Use of Earmarked reserves during the year                                                 -475 

Over provision for bad debts (see note below)                                             794 

Adjustment for housing benefit subsidy (see note at Appendix 1G)            629 

Use of Economic Impact Reserve (to fund overspend)                               -272 

Additional Contribution to Vehicle Replacement Reserve                           125 

Additional Contribution to Pensions Funding Reserve                                   75 

Budget Carry Forwards for 2011/2012                                                          301   

New Homes Bonus (Pre-payment relating to 2012/2013)                             122 

 

Sub Total                                                                                                       1,299 

 

Over provision for Bad Debts           
As part of Final Accounts closure a comprehensive review of the Provision for Bad 

Debts relating to the over payment of Housing Benefit was carried out and where 

there has been no reliable data in the past. This review established that the revenue 

account for the Housing Benefit Client has been showing an apparent overspend when 

in fact there was a probability that the overpayments would be recovered. This would 

not necessarily show up because the HB Client Account (and benefits generally) is a 

£38m cost centre where variations compared to estimates are not unexpected. As a 

consequence of this review £794k can be brought back into the revenue account that 

had effectively  been written off. It is not possible to chart this back through past 

years but certainly covers at least the last three years. There is still a very adequate 

provision for bad debts for HB Overpayments (93% on housing benefit overpayment 

arrears of £2.894m).   

 

 

Section 3: Capital Outturn 

 

The capital outturn is detailed at Appendix 2 and, by reference to the final page 

second table down, indicates an original (January 2011) programmed spend for 

2011/2012 of £14,709k. Since that date there have been reported increases to the 

capital programme (notably the Colosseum due to variation orders, and additional 

Section 106 projects). There has also been forecast rephrasing to projects such as the 

Health Campus and the Cultural Quarter. 

 

The ‘current budget’ on the final page therefore indicates an anticipated spend of 

£9,967k against an outturn of £10,066k (a £99k variation). 

 

The other significant issue to draw to Budget Panel’s attention is the Council’s 

holding of capital receipts (last page bottom two tables). For the General Capital 

Programme it shows the current capital programme (due to be completed in 

2014/2015) will use up all capital receipts except for a small balance of £854k. Any 

additional projects included from now on will further reduce this balance. 

 

For Section 106 funded expenditure (last table), the current programme will only 

leave unapplied contributions of £68k. 

Page 59



 

                                                                                              Appendix 1A Continued 
 

In both instances assumptions have already been made about the generation of new 

receipts (£5.5m for the General Fund; and £775k for Section 106 projects). It is 

essential that new receipts are generated unless the Council is content to actually 

borrow/ take on debt on a permanent basis.    

 

  

Page 60



��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�	



�
�
��

�
��
�
�
	
��


�
�
�
�
�




�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�



�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�



�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
��


�
��
�

��
��

�
��
�
��
	
�

�
�
��
 
�
�!
"
�

�
�
��
#
�
�#
�
"

��
��
#
�
�"
 
"
�

�
��
�$
%�
�
	
&
�

�
'
�
�

(
�#
(
#
�"
 
�

#
�!
#
�
�"
"
)

�(
�
�
��
�
#
�

#
��
��
��
�
��
*
�



�
 
!
�(
 
�

#
#
�
� 
"
�

 
!
��
!
�

#
��
��
+
�
��
��

�
�

�
�
)
� 
)
�

�
�
#
��
#
)

 
"
�(
 
)

(
��
�%
�


��
!
��
&
,�
��
�
�
	
�

�"
#
!
��
)
�
�

� 
�
(
��
"
�
�

��
(
(
�)
�
�
�

"
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
&
��
�
�
+
�

�
��
"
�#
#
(
�

��
"
�#
#
(
�

 
��
��
�
�
	
�

��
��
��

�
!
�
��
�
�

�
� 
#
#
�!
�
�

�
�#
(
#
�)
#
�

)
��
�-
�
��
	
�

��
�
+
�	
�
�

��
�
(
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
(
��
�
�

!
��
�.
�
&
�
	
&
�
	
�


�
(
)
!
�#
)
�

(
)
!
�#
)
�

/
��
	
&
�0
�
��
�

�
)
��
"
!
� 
)
�

�
)
�)
!
!
� 
#
!

"
#
!
�!
 
!

1�
��
�.
�
&
�
	
&
�
	
�


�(
)
!
�#
)
�
�

2
�
�
'
�
��
3
��
��
�
��
�
�	

�
)
�#
�
�
��
 
�

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



�������������������	


����

�����	
� 	��
����������� ����
������������������ ����
��	����� ����
��	��������������

�
��������������� ����!� ����������"�#���$���� �%&'�%��� �%��(%(�) �&��%��&�

�����*���+���,�� )('%��� -&&%�(� ��-.%-���

&�����$���/�� �.%)'� '�%��- �)%�&-

&������������ -'%(�� '-%--( �)%)-(

.���*	���(��+0� ����� �()%�-�� ���(%.&�� �&�%')��

����	���������+������ � �&%&''� �&%&''�

-���	������ ���� ��� �&�%(.� �&�%.��

)���1������� ����� �&.%'��� � &.%'��

(���2�+��+���� � ��'%�(& ��'%�(&

�
��������������� �3
��� &%�)�%��� &%��&%-�) ���)%�'&�

�
�,
������������ ����!� ����������"�#���$���� �%�-&%.)� �%�))%��� �.%���

�����*���+���,�� &.)%��� &))%-)) &�%�))

&�����$���/�� -%'�� )%''' �%�''

&������������ � �&- �&-

.���*	���(��+0� ����� ���%�)�� �'�%-��� �&�%����

����	���������+������ � �-%���� �-%����

-���	������ ���� &)%..� ��%��( ��)%&���

)���1������� ����� ���%�&�� � ��%�&�

(���2�+��+���� � '(%&�) '(%&�)

�
�,
������������ �3
��� �%&'&%.�� �%.'�%(&& ���%��&

�����
��������������� ����!� ����������"�#���$���� &%&��%�'� &%���%()� ����%��'�

�����*���+���,�� �%�'�%)&� �%���%�)( �'�%����

&�����$���/�� )(%'&� (.%(.- ��%��-

&������������ '�%-�� -(%&-) ���%�&&�

.���*	���(��+0� ����� ��&(%-��� ���)%���� �-)%-.��

����	���������+������ � �%..� �%..�

-���	������ ���� �'�%��� &��%-)� �)�%.��

)���1������� ����� ��&%.��� � �&%.��

(���2�+��+���� � .�%-'� .�%-'�

�����
��������������� �3
��� .%�'.%.�� .%.'�%.�- ����%�..�

������	�+�/�
,������������ ����!� ����������"�#���$���� �%-)-%�-� �%-��%��- �).%(..�

�����*���+���,�� -��%�.� �'�%)�( ���%�&��

&�����$���/�� ).%�.� ()%(�( �&%&)(

&������������ -�%-)� &-%&-. ��(%&�-�

.���*	���(��+0� ����� �)&%(-�� ����%)��� �&-%)(��

����	���������+������ � ��%&'�� ��%&'��

-���	������ ���� �)%��� �.-%��) ��(%��)

)���1������� ����� �&&%)��� � &&%)��

(���2�+��+���� � &&%'(� &&%'(�

������	�+�/�
,������������ �3
��� �%&&-%(�� �%.''%��- ���%�)-


��������������
� ����!� ����������"�#���$���� &(�%��� &(.%-)� �%���

�����*���+���,�� �.-%&�� �.�%��) ��%)'&�

.���*	���(��+0� ����� ��'%���� ��-%-��� �'%����

����	���������+������ � �%��� �%���

-���	������ ���� � .&& .&&

)���1������� ����� �)%(��� � )%(��

(���2�+��+���� � ��)%)�� ��)%)��


��������������
��3
��� ���%.�� -&)%''� ���%.'�

/������� ����!� ����������"�#���$���� �%��'%��� �%&-�%�&( ��(-%-���

�����*���+���,�� ��(%)�� ..�%-�& �-'%�()�

&�����$���/�� �'%��� ��%�&� ��%.-��

&������������ �%��� �%-�� �%���

.���*	���(��+0� ����� �-�%.��� �(�%-(�� ���%�(��

����	���������+������ � ��%��&� ��%��&�

-���	������ ���� ��%��� �'%��� .'%���

)���1������� ����� ��(%'��� � �(%'��

(���2�+��+���� � -.%.)) -.%.))

/��������3
��� �%���%��� �%'-�%�.) ����%��&�

�$���+�������� ����!� ����������"�#���$���� �%&�.%&.� �%�.)%)�' ���-%�'��

�����*���+���,�� ).�%(-� --�%�)' �'�%''��

&�����$���/�� -%��� ��%�.( �-%&&(

&������������ � ')%(') ')%(')

.���*	���(��+0� ����� � ��&%&.�� ��&%&.��

����	���������+������ � �'%�.(� �'%�.(�

-���	������ ���� � -'-%(). -'-%().

�$���+�������� �3
��� &%��-%��� &%�)'%'�) .)�%&.)

�$���+�������� �*�,���������
� -���	������ ���� .&%��� &&%.'- �(%��.�

�$���+�������� �*�,���������
��3
��� .&%��� &&%.'- �(%��.�

����������4������ ����!� ����������"�#���$���� ���%.�� ()%)'� ��)%--'�

�����*���+���,�� ���%(�� ')%'�� ���%����

&�����$���/�� �(%&�� )%'�� ���%����

.���*	���(��+0� ����� �(.%�)�� ���%&)�� )'%)��

����	���������+������ � �)� �)�

)���1������� ����� �&.%���� � &.%���

����������4�������3
��� ��(%-�� �)'%�'- -'%�'-

5���+�3
��� �)%��(%-)� �)%)((%-&( �&(%(-(

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



����������	��
��
��
 ���
����� ����������

������
� ������

�� ��

������
�������
��


����������	
����	
������� ����� �����

�����

�	
�����
�
������������������	�� �� ��

������������ ����!���"����� # �$

%���"������	
���	
��� ���� ��$�

&��	������'���	�����(���	������	�

 ���	)����	��� # ��$�

(��������	�� # ��*�

���������������	�����%+�,������� �� ��

�����
������-������ $ $

.����/����� ���� ����

0���"���� ��� ����

�/1��	
��������� # �2

3����� ���4�
��������	�	� ���� ��#�

%����	�

�	
������	���
����������� ��#� �����

�����	���������5������	
���
��67879 ��# ��#

�����	�������5�
���	���5�������	� ��#$� ��$*�

���
������������
��


����������	
����	
��
���� ��2� ��*$�

0���,����	���	
��� # ��#�

,�:��/�
�	
���	
��� ��#� ��2�

/�
�	��	���
���	
��� ��� ����

�������,��
�	���	
��� ��� ��#�

�����������	��	�

�
���	��	������������ ��� ����

,��
�� ����

 �����;������� ���� ����

����� �<� ����

0����	
��� 2< 2<

=�-�������
���������
���	���	
��� �� ��

=��
�
��	���	
��� � ����

=��
�
��	��&��	�� ��#� �$2�

���	���	
�'���
����0��� �# 2<

>	5���	��	�����5�
���	���5�������	� �$ ���*�

�
�����������
�� ��!� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �""���
#��$

Page 65



�����
�%�����&���
"���

����������	
����	
������� ����� �����

/�	
�������������
��-��� # ����

;�5������	����	������	
��� *� *�

7���
�	��=��������	�-��� *� ��

 ����-���,=;� ���� ��#�

,��	��������?��
��� ��#� ����

,����5�	����	
��� 2$ 2<

/�
������	�6�������������9 # ��

���		�	��8�,��	������	���5�������	� ���� �����

���"����������
��


����������	
����	
��
���� ���#� �*

�����	������-����
�����?����	��-

���	����	
�
�	���?����	� 2 �$��

���	��;�5����	�@���
�	���������	 * *�

�������������5�
���	���5�������	� ���<� ����

'�%���(����"���������
��


����������	
����	
��
���� �2 ��2

>��
���	�����	� # ��$�

/��������-�����	���-��� �� ��

��	
����-��� # ����

������
����=�	��!���5�
��
������!������ �*� 2�#

/�����8����������	���5�������	� 2�� 2<�

������%
���
�����

�����
����5�
����
�������	���	�����
�� ���� ��<�

�7�	�-��� ��* �$<

�=�5�	��� �� $�

AA;=�
��
�����	��������������- # �$

=�5�	������	
��������������� ��� ��

����-�"����8�&����
������ # �*

7�	�-����	���
�����-��,!�=�	������"�	
�� ��$� ��

���5����	�-���=�
�	
�	
�!���	���	������	 # �2��

���5����	�-���B�?��������!������	-�����	 ��#� ��#�

��	��	��	
�����5����	� # ����

�	5�����	���	������!��	������������	���6	��9 # �*$�

��������
�0�	�	
��@�	���5�������	� �# �2$

(5������1�B������5�
��'�������	� ��� �2�

1��
����	�����5�������	� ��� ���

Page 66



�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	



�
��



�
	

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�
��
�
�

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1
E

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�

�

�


��
��
�
�
�

�

 
��


�
�
�

!

"

 
#


�
�
�

$
	



	
��
%
�

1
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
la

y
D

N
C

0
0
0

D
1
1
3
9

9
,5

3
0
 N

e
w

 p
la

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 d

e
la

y
e
d
.

2
.1

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
A

B
E

0
0
0

D
0
9
0
2

W
J
0
0
0
2

4

1
4
,0

0
0
 U

n
d
e
r-

s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 1

1
/1

2
 t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
to

 1
2
/1

3

2
.2

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

A
B

E
0
0
0

D
0
9
0
2

W
J
0
0
0
2

8

1
,0

0
0
 U

n
d
e
r-

s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 1

1
/1

2
 t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
to

 1
2
/1

3

3
L
e
g
a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

E
le

c
ti
o
n
s

A
G

B
0
0
0

D
0
1
0
1

2
5
,0

0
0
 U

n
d
e
r-

s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 1

1
/1

2
 t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 f

u
n
d
 t
e
m

p
. 
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
2
.

4
.1

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

B
L
L
0
0
1

D
0
9
0
2

2
2
,7

7
0
 G

ra
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 "

b
e
lo

n
g
s
" 

to
 O

n
e
 W

a
tf

o
rd

4
.2

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 P
e
rf

.
A

D
P

0
0
0

D
0
9
0
2

W
J
0
0
2
3

5
,0

0
0
 O

n
e
 W

a
tf

o
rd

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
to

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

4
.3

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
W

a
tf

o
rd

 H
e
a
lt
h
 I
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s

A
D

P
0
0
2

D
0
9
0
2

1
5
,1

1
0
 P

C
T

 m
o
n
e
y
 w

h
ic

h
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

.

4
.4

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
B

u
ild

in
g
s
 &

 P
ro

je
c
ts

F
K

E
0
0
0

B
0
1
0
4

5
7
,0

0
0
 O

n
-g

o
in

g
 w

o
rk

 -
 m

a
in

ly
 o

n
 g

u
tt
e
ri
n
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

5
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
re

v
e
n
t 
(W

o
m

e
n
's

 e
m

p
o
w

e
rm

e
n
t)

A
C

A
0
0
0

D
0
9
0
2

W
J
0
0
3
2

8
,8

0
0
 F

in
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 o

ld
 P

re
v
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y

6
.1

P
la

n
n
in

g
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

B
E

A
0
0
0

D
1
1
1
2

1
,8

6
0
 U

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
  
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
a
rk

in
g
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 

p
a
rk

in
g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

P
Z

 a
re

a
s
 i
n
 W

a
tf

o
rd

 

6
.2

P
la

n
n
in

g
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

B
E

A
0
0
0

D
0
5
5
6

6
,8

9
0
 F

u
n
d
s
 t
o
 u

s
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 D

a
n
c
in

g
 L

a
d
y
 S

ta
tu

e
 R

e
p
a
ir

7
L
e
g
a
l 
&

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
B

u
ild

in
g
s
 &

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 -
 C

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

fa
ilu

re

F
K

E
0
0
0

B
0
1
0
5

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 r

e
p
a
ir
s

8
L
e
g
a
l 
&

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 P
e
rf

.
A

D
P

0
0
0

J
0
2
0
3

1
,5

7
7
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
d
. 
 i
n
 M

a
r-

1
2
 r

e
. 
2
0
1
2
/1

3

9
L
e
g
a
l 
&

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
V

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 &

 E
s
ta

te
s
 (

E
 H

ill
)

F
K

C
0
0
0

A
0
1
0
1

3
2
,8

0
0
 S

a
la

ry
 E

 H
ill

 -
 r

e
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

T
O

T
A

L
 R

E
Q

U
E

S
T

E
D

3
0
1
,3

3
7

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	
	

	
�

��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�


�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�	
��
�
��
	
	

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
�

�
��
	
��

�
��
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	

�
�
�
�



��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
�

�
	
��
�
	
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
� 
�

�!
�
!
�"
�
#
��
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
$
�#
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
�$
!
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
%
	
�&
�
��
�

	
'�

�(
�
�
	
�
&�
��
�
��
� 
�

�$
�
�
�$
�
!
�!
$
�

�
"
�
��
"
!
��
$

�!
�
$
��
!
�
��
�
�

�
�
)
�
�
�

*�
�+

	
��
�
��
�
�
&�
�
��
�
,
	
��
��
�
��
� 
�

��
�
�$
#
�
��
#
�

#
�
�
��
�

��
�
�#
$
�
��
#
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

+
�

&
��
-
&�
��
.
��
	
��
�
�
��
�
,
��
�
��
� 

��
#
�
��
#
�
�#
�
�

�
��
�

��
#
�
��
#
�
�#
�
�

�
�
*�

�
�

�
�
�
&�
�
�
,
�
��
&�
�
�
	
�	
�
&�
�
�-
'%

�
/
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
+
�
�
�

�
�
/
�

�
��
��
��
 
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
��
� 
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
�#
�
�

�
��
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
�#
�
�

�
�
0
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�1
�
�
�
2�
&�
-
�
3
��


.

��
$
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�$
�
"
��
"
�
��
�
�

�"
"
$
�$
�
$
��
�
�

�
*-
�
�
�

�
�
�2
�
�/

	
�
'�

��
�
4
	
�

��
�	
�
&�
�
�
��
 

�!
#
��
$
!
��
�
�

��
�
�#
!
�
��
�
�

��
�
"
�"
�
�
��
�
�

�
0
*�

�
�

�

�
/
	
&�
��
%
	
�
�
�
��
�
��
� 
�

�$
�
�#
�
�
�$
�
�

�
"
��
�
$
��
�

�!
#
�!
$
"
�$
$
�

�
0
0
�
�
�

�
�
'.
'

��
�
��
�
��
� 
�

��
�
��
�
�
�!
#
�

$
��
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
�
�
�!
#
�

�
*)

�
�
�

1
�


�
�
&�
�
	
��
.
��
�
�4

	
�

��
�
�
��
� 
�

��
!
#
�"
�
�
��
�
�

!
�
�$
�
�
��
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�


�
�
�
��
	
�


�
�
�
�



�
**
�
�
�

�
�
��
� 
�
��
�5
�
 
�
�&
�(
�
�-
	
 
�

��
�!
"
�
��
�
"
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�

��
�!
�
"
��
�
"
��
�
�

�
*+

�
�
�

�
�
��
� 
�
��
	
,
�&
	

�
�
�
�


��
�
��
� 
�

��
�#
"
�
�$
#
�
��
�
�

�
��
�

��
�#
"
�
�$
#
�
��
�
�

�
*�

�
�
�

*6
�1
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
4
&%
�5
�
'�

�
&�
 
�

�$
"
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�#
#
�
�"
�

�$
!
�
��
!
!
�#
$
�

�
*�

�
�
�

6
��
	
�1
	
��


��
�	
�
&�
�
�
��
� 
�

�#
$
��
!
"
�"
�
�

�
��
�

�#
$
��
!
"
�"
�
�

�
*(

�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�7

��
�
�
��
�
��
� 
�

��
�
�
�"
�
�
�"
�
�

�
��
�

��
�
�
�"
�
�
�"
�
�

�
*�

�
�
�

8
'�

�
�
/
�'
�5
/
,
	
'&
��
�
��
� 
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
$
��
�
�

��
#
$
�"
�
"
�"
$
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
$
��
#
�

�
*9

�
�
�

0
�
4
��
�
/
�
��
1
�
�
�
�

�!
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�!
"
�
��
�
�

��
!
�
�!
"
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
�

*�
��
�
��
�-
&�
�
'&
�
��


�+

	
��
&�
�
	
�
'�

��
�
�

�!
�
�
��
�
�
��
$
�

�
��
�

�!
�
�
��
�
�
��
$
�

�
�
:
�
�
�

8
;
	
/
�5
�
��
�
3

�
'�
��
*�

�
��
�
��
� 
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
*0

�
�
�

�
�
&�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
�
��
� 
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
*0

�
�
�

5�
��

�	
�
'�

��
�
�


��
�
��
� 
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
*0

�
�
!

�
�
%
�'

�
��
�
,

	
'�

/
�
�
&�
�
�
��
� 
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�!
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
	
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�

�
*<

�
�
�

�
�
 
�

�
,
/
�
�
&�
-
�&
�
��
��
�
�
'�

�
&	
/
��
	
&�
�
�
��
�
��
� 
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
!
�!
!
�

�
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
!
�!
!
�

 
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�!
�
#
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
$
��
#
�
��
$
�

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                            APPENDIX 1G 

                           Supplementary Notes to the Reserves Position 

 

Car Park Zones Reserve 

Closing balance £575k  

The Budget panel received a report on 11 Jan 2012 in which a balance of £486k was 

forecast. The reasons for the difference are because a number of projects have been 

carried forward into 2012/2013 combined with the fact that the spend on pay and 

display machines was not as high as anticipated. 

 

Charter Place Tenants Reserve 

Closing balance £476k. This reserve was circa £892k at April 2010 so it has been 

significantly reduced. It is likely that this will need to be returned to tenants or 

transferred to CSC (to subsidise future service charges) in the near future. It is not 

Watford’s money. 

 

Multi Storey Car Park Reserve 

Unchanged closing balance of £183k. Watford is responsible for structural repair to 

the MSCPs so this balance is totally insufficient to enable anything meaningful to be 

carried out. A stock condition survey is to be carried out in the near future and that 

will be an important background paper as part of a review into future management of 

our car parks. 

 

Housing Benefit Subsidy Reserve 

This reserve had originally been set up in case external audit find any issues with our 

Benefit Subsidy Grant Claims. Should they do so then the Department of Works and 

Pensions (DWP) operate a ‘claw back’ of subsidy payments. This claw back is based 

upon an ‘extrapolation’ process—so that if, for instance, 5 individual benefit claims 

were found to be incorrect (out of a sample of 20 claims) then a 25% overall error rate 

would be assumed. As Watford’s subsidy claim is circa £38m, then the amount of 

withheld grant subsidy can be significant. This Reserve has increased by £629k in 

2011/2012 as a consequence of External Audit discovering incorrect accounting 

treatment as part of its audit. As a consequence sundry debtors has been amended and 

this reserve has increased (it relates to a payment of subsidy from the DWP that was 

recorded in the wrong place).  

 

Performance Reward Grant Reserve 

Closing position of £120k (and has actually increased by £72k in the year due to an 

accountancy adjustment relating to 2010/2011). It is the intention to utilise a number 

of former earmarked reserves during the next two years. 

 

Invest to Save Reserve 

Closing position of £1,420k and reduced by £74k due to funding a Resilience Officer/ 

V4 Consultancy/ Licensing Review. Will continue to be used in 2012/2013 for 

projects with an anticipated future years pay back.  

 

Capital Fund Reserve 

Balance unchanged at £1,896k. Due to the likely future shortage of capital receipts, 

consideration should be given to increasing the balance by  transferring the surplus on 

the Economic Impact Reserve of £287k. 

Page 71



 

LAGBI Reserve 

Closing balance of £641k and reduced by £56k during the year in order to fund 

Watford for You/ Imagine Watford/ Taxi survey. 

 

Area Based Grant Reserve/ Housing and Planning Development Grant Reserve 

Both balances unchanged throughout 2011/2012 with a combined balance of £387k. 

Will be used to fund one off expenditure in 2012/2013 and future years. For example, 

the Council has signed up to a green deal initiative in 2012/2013 which required a 

£35k one off contribution. The Housing Planning Development Grant Reserve has 

been used. 

 

 

Economic Impact Reserve 

Has increased by £287k to £1,537k and is  the primary reserve for meeting any 

general over spends on the revenue account. It has effectively increased due to an 

under spend on revenue accounts in 2011/2012 (after earmarked reserves had been 

used) and it is recommended that this should be transferred to the Capital Fund 

reserve. 

 

New Homes Bonus 

Closing balance of £542k and comprising £420k in respect of 2011/2012 and £122k 

being the first months payment for 2012/2013 (a ‘pre-payment’). 

 

Leisure Structural Maintenance Reserve 

Unchanged at £423k although our assets are getting older and at some point 

consideration may need to be given to top this up. 

 

Future Pensions Funding Reserve 

Balance at year end of £1,375k. 

This needs to be preserved as it is likely to be drawn down in future years. 

The original intention was to use £400k of this reserve in 2011/2012 to meet 

redundancy and pension strain costs. In the event, we have accommodated all these 

costs within revenue budgets.  

 

Insurance Fund Reserve 

Unchanged at £100k. We still have a contingent liability in the Balance Sheet of 

£347k which is the outstanding potential insurance liabilities relating to the former 

MMI. The Creditors Committee does not believe there will be enough money left in 

the defunct company’s accounts to meet all outstanding liabilities. So the £100k is just 

an insurance policy!  

 

Vehicle Replacement Reserve 

Has now increased to £425k and is being built up so that we have available resources 

to replace our vehicle fleet should we need to do so. The proposed potential 

outsourcing of waste, recycling, street cleansing, parks and open spaces might result 

in vehicle replacements falling to an external contractor. An evaluation will need to be 

carried out in due course to establish the most financially efficient way of funding 

plant and vehicles. 

 

Page 72



Decontamination Reserve 

Unchanged at £1.3m and  earmarked to clean up any of our developments sites (also 

have a potential clean up liability attaching to 5/6 sites transferred to WCHT). 

 

General Fund Balance 

This is to be maintained for the foreseeable future at £1,350k and is our ‘last resort’ 

fund. External Audit would not permit this to be reduced. 

 

 

As at 31
st
 March 2012. 

 

 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 -

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

2
0

0
9

-1
5

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
3

/1
4

2
0

1
4

/1
5

O
ff

i-
6
-Y

e
a
r

C
a
p

it
a
l

C
a
p

it
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

R
e
p

h
a
s
in

g
In

c
r/

D
e
c
r 

&
C

u
rr

e
n

t
S

p
e
n

d
O

ri
g

in
a
l

R
e
p

h
a
s
e
d

In
c
r/

D
e
c
r 

&
C

u
rr

e
n

t
O

ri
g

in
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

C
C

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

c
e
rs

C
o

s
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

B
u

d
g

e
t

to
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
V

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
B

u
d

g
e
t

P
d

1
2

B
u

d
g

e
t

fr
o

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
V

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
B

u
d

g
e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
  

  
 

£
  

  
 

£
  

  
 

£
  

  
 

£
  

  
 

£
£
  

  
 

£
  

  
 

£
  

  
 

£
  

  
 

£
  

  
 

£
  

  
 

£
  

  
 

£
  

  
 

W
A

6
9
2
0

K
e
y
 P

ro
je

c
ts

W
A

A
9
2
0

C
a
rd

if
f 

R
o
a
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

a
m

p
u
s

T
D

4
,9

8
1
,9

6
1
 

2
8
1
,9

6
1
 

5
2
5
,6

2
4
 

2
,7

2
4
,3

7
6
 

(8
3
7
,9

3
2
)

0
 

1
,8

8
6
,4

4
4
 

1
,8

8
6
,4

4
4
 

1
,4

5
0
,0

0
0
 

8
3
7
,9

3
2
 

0
 

2
,2

8
7
,9

3
2
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
7
4

C
o
lo

s
s
e
u
m

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

C
H

6
,0

0
8
,9

3
9
 

2
3
2
,3

5
1
 

3
,1

9
0
,7

9
4
 

2
,3

7
5
,8

5
5
 

0
 

2
,3

7
5
,8

5
5
 

2
,5

8
5
,7

9
4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
9
8

C
o
lo

s
s
e
u
m

 R
o
o
f

IB
1
9
0
,7

8
3
 

0
 

2
,3

7
5
 

1
8
8
,9

0
5
 

0
 

1
8
8
,9

0
5
 

1
8
8
,4

0
8
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
8
3

C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
h
a
s
e
 1

C
H

4
,3

5
5
,7

2
8
 

0
 

6
7
,9

2
0
 

1
,8

9
5
,0

0
0
 

(1
,7

6
7
,1

5
8
)

0
 

1
2
7
,8

4
2
 

1
2
4
,6

2
0
 

2
,6

0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,7

6
7
,1

5
8
 

(4
,1

4
6
,7

4
3
)

2
2
0
,4

1
5
 

2
,5

5
3
,2

7
9
 

1
,3

8
9
,4

9
4
 

W
A

A
9
5
4

G
re

e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

P
R

1
,2

4
8
,0

8
0
 

3
3
6
,6

4
8
 

1
2
3
,9

3
2
 

3
6
6
,5

0
0
 

(8
,1

3
3
)

0
 

3
5
8
,3

6
7
 

3
5
8
,3

6
7
 

2
1
0
,5

0
0
 

8
,1

3
3
 

0
 

2
1
8
,6

3
3
 

2
1
0
,5

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
6
7

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 C

ro
x
le

y
 R

a
il 

L
in

k
J
C

2
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

6
9
2
1

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

W
A

A
9
8
6

R
e
fu

s
e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 F

re
ig

h
te

rs
B

B
1
,4

9
5
,1

0
0
 

0
 

1
,4

9
5
,1

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
7
5

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 B

o
x
e
s
 (

7
5
%

 G
ra

n
t 

F
u
n
d
e
d
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
) 

B
B

1
0
7
,4

6
5
 

2
0
,1

2
5
 

2
7
,3

4
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

W
A

A
9
7
8

S
tr

e
e
t 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 B

in
s
 (

1
0
0
%

 G
ra

n
t 

F
u
n
d
e
d
)

B
B

3
2
,8

0
0
 

1
6
,8

0
0
 

1
6
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
8
1

T
ra

d
e
 W

a
s
te

 R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 B

in
s
 (

7
5
%

 G
ra

n
t 

F
u
n
d
e
d
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
)

B
B

1
0
5
,8

5
6
 

0
 

4
4
,3

0
6
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,5

5
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

W
A

A
9
9
2

G
re

e
n
 W

a
s
te

 B
in

s
B

B
4
8
,0

1
5
 

0
 

1
8
,0

6
0
 

1
8
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
8
,0

0
0
 

1
1
,9

5
5
 

1
8
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

1
8
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
8
8

B
in

s
 i
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 (

7
5
%

 G
ra

n
t 

F
u
n
d
e
d
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
)

B
B

4
0
,8

2
8
 

0
 

4
0
,8

2
8
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

J
6
0
2

C
a
rb

o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

/ 
C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e

A
G

3
1
9
,5

2
3
 

1
1
,5

2
4
 

0
 

1
5
4
,0

0
0
 

(1
3
9
,8

1
6
)

0
 

1
4
,1

8
4
 

1
4
,1

8
4
 

7
7
,0

0
0
 

1
3
9
,8

1
6
 

0
 

2
1
6
,8

1
6
 

7
7
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
9
9

H
a
n
d
h
e
ld

s
 f

o
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
M

R
2
8
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

2
8
,0

0
0
 

(2
8
,0

0
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
8
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
8
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
7
0
2

V
e
h
ic

le
 w

e
ig

h
t 

s
e
n
s
o
rs

M
R

7
,8

0
0
 

0
 

7
,8

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
5
0

S
n
o
w

 /
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
s

M
R

2
0
,8

0
0
 

0
 

2
0
,8

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
5
1

K
e
rb

s
id

e
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 V

e
h
ic

le
s

B
B

3
6
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
6
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

3
6
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
B

D
0
0
0

E
m

p
ty

 P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 (

C
P

O
, 

E
D

M
O

)
J
H

7
2
3
,3

1
6
 

5
6
5
,3

9
9
 

1
5
7
,8

8
3
 

0
 

3
5
 

3
5
 

3
5
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

J
3
0
0

D
e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

J
H

7
8
0
,2

4
7
 

5
6
,3

9
0
 

1
3
8
,2

0
8
 

2
6
8
,3

0
0
 

(1
9
,0

0
0
)

(7
2
,6

3
8
)

1
7
6
,6

6
2
 

1
6
6
,6

4
9
 

2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
9
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
1
9
,0

0
0
 

2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

J
6
0
0

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 (

H
a
n
d
y
m

a
n
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
)

J
H

5
3
,6

6
9
 

2
6
,0

4
1
 

0
 

0
 

2
7
,6

2
8
 

2
7
,6

2
8
 

2
7
,6

2
8
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

J
8
0
0

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 (

E
m

p
ty

 H
o
m

e
s
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
)

J
H

7
1
,5

2
0
 

2
6
,5

4
5
 

0
 

0
 

4
4
,9

7
5
 

4
4
,9

7
5
 

4
4
,9

7
5
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
6
1

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 B

in
s

B
B

6
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

W
A

A
1
6
2

K
e
rb

s
id

e
r 

V
e
h
ic

le
s
 x

2
B

B
2
4
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
4
0
,0

0
0
 

W
A

6
9
2
2

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 L
e
is

u
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

W
A

A
9
6
9

W
o
o
d
s
id

e
 p

o
le

 v
a
u
lt
 b

e
d
s
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

L
P

2
1
,6

4
3
 

4
3
,2

8
7
 

(2
1
,6

4
3
)

4
4
,6

4
3
 

(4
4
,6

4
3
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
2
1
0

R
e
s
u
rf

a
c
e
 W

o
o
d
s
id

e
 S

ta
d
iu

m
 T

ra
c
k
/L

o
n
g
 J

u
m

p
 r

e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n

L
P

1
5
7
,4

3
9
 

1
4
2
,4

3
9
 

1
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

(0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
9
0

H
o
ly

w
e
ll 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
IB

5
0
0
,9

8
2
 

1
0
,7

8
0
 

4
8
0
,0

1
6
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
0
,1

8
6
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
6
8

W
o
o
d
s
id

e
 F

e
n
c
e

P
R

7
,2

1
0
 

7
,2

1
0
 

0
 

4
2
,7

9
0
 

(4
2
,7

9
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
9
6

W
o
o
d
s
id

e
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 P
h
a
s
e
 1

T
W

2
2
9
,2

2
1
 

0
 

2
,1

0
0
 

2
2
3
,9

0
0
 

0
 

2
2
3
,9

0
0
 

2
2
7
,1

2
1
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
9
7

W
o
o
d
s
id

e
 S

ta
d
iu

m
 T

o
ile

t 
R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

L
P

4
2
,4

9
5
 

0
 

2
,0

0
0
 

3
8
,0

0
0
 

2
,4

9
5
 

4
0
,4

9
5
 

4
0
,4

9
5
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
2
1

W
a
te

rf
ie

ld
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d
 C

a
r 

P
a
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

*
J
C

1
1
,0

6
8
 

0
 

0
 

1
5
,0

0
0
 

(1
0
,0

0
0
)

0
 

5
,0

0
0
 

1
,0

6
8
 

0
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
3
3

C
a
s
s
io

b
u
ry

 P
a
rk

 D
e
p
o
t 

(n
o
t 

s
.1

0
6
)

P
R

1
6
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

1
6
0
,0

0
0
 

(1
6
0
,0

0
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
6
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
6
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
2
4

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 R

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 M

o
n
ie

s
IB

2
3
8
,0

9
2
 

1
9
7
,2

2
7
 

4
0
,8

6
5
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

J
2
0
2

C
a
llo

w
la

n
d
 D

e
m

o
lit

io
n

IB
4
9
,8

5
0
 

4
9
,4

5
3
 

3
9
7
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

6
9
2
3

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

W
A

J
1
0
0

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 G

ra
n
ts

R
D

3
,5

0
2
,0

7
9
 

7
1
9
,0

1
0
 

5
5
2
,7

0
0
 

5
6
0
,3

0
0
 

(1
,6

6
4
)

0
 

5
5
8
,6

3
6
 

5
5
8
,6

3
6
 

5
0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,6

6
4
 

7
0
,0

6
8
 

5
7
1
,7

3
2
 

5
5
0
,0

0
0
 

5
5
0
,0

0
0
 

W
A

J
0
0
0

F
u
rn

it
u
re

 A
n
d
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

R
D

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

J
2
0
3

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
R

D
1
,2

5
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
5
,2

6
0
 

4
8
4
,7

4
0
 

(3
5
6
,8

7
2
)

0
 

1
2
7
,8

6
8
 

1
2
7
,8

6
8
 

2
5
0
,0

0
0
 

3
5
6
,8

7
2
 

0
 

6
0
6
,8

7
2
 

2
5
0
,0

0
0
 

2
5
0
,0

0
0
 

W
A

A
9
8
7

B
ri

n
g
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
lo

n
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

o
 D

e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

L
P

1
5
6
,5

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

1
5
6
,5

0
0
 

(1
4
8
,8

0
4
)

0
 

7
,6

9
6
 

7
,6

9
6
 

0
 

1
4
8
,8

0
4
 

0
 

1
4
8
,8

0
4
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
8
9

B
ri

n
g
in

g
 Y

o
rk

 H
o
u
s
e
 t

o
 D

e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

L
P

8
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

8
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

8
5
,0

0
0
 

8
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

J
3
0
1

P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
S

to
c
k
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

c
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

)
L
P

1
0
0
,2

7
0
 

7
6
,2

7
0
 

3
,1

2
5
 

2
0
,8

7
5
 

(2
0
,8

7
5
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
0
,8

7
5
 

0
 

2
0
,8

7
5
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

6
9
2
4

P
a
rk

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

W
A

A
9
5
0

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

P
a
y
 a

n
d
 D

is
p
la

y
 M

a
c
h
in

e
s

J
C

2
3
0
,6

5
0
 

5
6
,5

4
9
 

4
,1

0
1
 

6
5
,0

0
0
 

(1
7
,1

4
0
)

0
 

4
7
,8

6
0
 

4
7
,8

6
0
 

0
 

1
7
,1

4
0
 

3
5
,0

0
0
 

5
2
,1

4
0
 

3
5
,0

0
0
 

3
5
,0

0
0
 

W
A

A
9
8
4

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

M
a
tc

h
d
a
y
 P

a
rk

in
g
 S

ig
n
s
 i
n
 C

P
Z

J
C

1
3
8
,3

2
4
 

0
 

1
3
8
,3

2
4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
8
5

C
a
s
s
io

b
u
ry

 &
 N

a
s
c
o
t 

C
P

Z
J
C

5
3
,7

8
5
 

0
 

5
3
,7

8
5
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e

s
2

0
1

1
/1

2

Page 75



C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 -

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

2
0

0
9

-1
5

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
3

/1
4

2
0

1
4

/1
5

6
-Y

e
a
r

C
a
p

it
a
l

C
a
p

it
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

R
e
p

h
a
s
in

g
In

c
r/

D
e
c
r 

&
C

u
rr

e
n

t
S

p
e
n

d
O

ri
g

in
a
l

R
e
p

h
a
s
e
d

In
c
r/

D
e
c
r 

&
C

u
rr

e
n

t
O

ri
g

in
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

C
C

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

C
o

s
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

B
u

d
g

e
t

to
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
V

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
B

u
d

g
e
t

P
d

1
2

B
u

d
g

e
t

fr
o

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
V

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
B

u
d

g
e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£
  

  
 

£
£

£
  

  
 

£
£

£

W
A

6
9
2
5

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

W
A

A
9
9
4

D
e
p
o
t 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

A
G

1
,1

9
9
,2

5
0
 

0
 

1
1
3
,8

7
0
 

1
,0

8
5
,3

8
0
 

(2
0
0
,3

8
9
)

0
 

8
8
4
,9

9
1
 

8
8
4
,9

9
1
 

0
 

2
0
0
,3

8
9
 

0
 

2
0
0
,3

8
9
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
9
5

B
a
c
k
lo

g
 r

e
p
a
ir

s
 t

o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

IB
2
,0

0
4
,7

1
4
 

0
 

1
5
,1

3
9
 

5
0
0
,0

0
0
 

(1
5
6
,4

9
5
)

(1
0
,4

2
4
)

3
3
3
,0

8
1
 

3
3
3
,0

8
1
 

5
0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
5
6
,4

9
5
 

0
 

6
5
6
,4

9
5
 

5
0
0
,0

0
0
 

5
0
0
,0

0
0
 

W
A

A
9
6
2

O
th

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
ts

IB
2
4
6
,6

1
2
 

2
1
6
,7

4
6
 

2
9
,8

6
7
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
6
7

Im
p
ro

v
e
.O

rb
it
a
l 
C

C
S

M
1
9
,7

4
9
 

0
 

9
,3

2
5
 

0
 

1
0
,4

2
4
 

1
0
,4

2
4
 

1
0
,4

2
4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
7
3

C
a
p
it
a
lis

e
d
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

W
o
rk

IB
5
5
,6

5
6
 

7
,5

5
7
 

4
8
,0

9
9
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
2
3

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

B
u
ild

in
g
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

(W
o
o
lw

o
rt

h
s
)

A
B

1
,0

0
5
,1

9
3
 

2
0
,1

1
1
 

9
3
1
,5

8
8
 

0
 

5
2
,8

0
0
 

5
2
,8

0
0
 

5
3
,4

9
4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
1
0

T
o
w

n
 H

a
ll 

D
ra

in
a
g
e

IB
3
5
,3

2
7
 

0
 

3
5
,3

2
7
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
2
5

C
h
a
rt

e
r 

P
la

c
e

H
H

7
1
8
,7

4
4
 

1
6
5
,9

6
0
 

2
5
2
,7

8
4
 

0
 

5
2
,1

6
9
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
5
2
,1

6
9
 

1
5
2
,1

6
9
 

0
 

(5
2
,1

6
9
)

2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
4
7
,8

3
1
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
6
3

C
h
a
rt

e
r 

P
la

c
e
 C

C
T

V
T

W
1
1
1
,6

6
0
 

1
3
4
,1

3
4
 

2
,5

2
7
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

(2
5
,0

0
1
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
5
5

P
la

n
n
in

g
 A

n
d
 D

-P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 &

 S
e
rv

T
W

3
,1

0
9
 

0
 

0
 

3
,1

0
9
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
6
0

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 D

is
p
o
s
a
l 
U

p
fr

o
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

A
B

4
0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

(1
0
0
,0

0
0
)

0
 

0
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
2
2

C
o
u
n
c
il 

C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

S
o
u
n
d
 S

y
s
te

m
C

G
6
3
,1

7
6
 

0
 

7
0
0
 

8
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

8
0
,0

0
0
 

6
2
,4

7
6
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
6
4

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 C

C
T

V
T

W
5
,6

2
6
 

4
,4

2
6
 

1
,2

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
9
3

E
v
e
n
ts

 M
a
rk

e
t

Y
S

1
6
0
,0

0
4
 

0
 

1
3
,3

3
3
 

1
4
6
,6

7
1
 

(6
7
,5

5
1
)

0
 

7
9
,1

2
0
 

7
9
,1

2
0
 

0
 

6
7
,5

5
1
 

0
 

6
7
,5

5
1
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
6
3

G
u
e
s
t 

M
a
rk

e
t 

(I
n
d
o
o
r)

A
B

1
,8

8
1
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,8

8
1
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
3
1

S
tr

ip
lin

g
 W

a
y
 C

y
c
le

 P
a
th

T
W

8
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

8
,0

0
0
 

(8
,0

0
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

8
,0

0
0
 

0
 

8
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
5
2

W
a
tf

o
rd

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 I

n
c
u
b
a
to

r 
(L

S
P

 f
u
n
d
e
d
)

K
R

1
0
2
,6

9
6
 

0
 

1
0
2
,6

9
6
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
2
0
0

P
la

n
n
in

g
 A

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t-

P
ro

p
e

A
F

1
,3

1
3
 

0
 

1
,3

1
3
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

D
9
1
1

C
iv

ic
 C

o
re

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

A
B

1
8
7
,9

0
2
 

1
8
7
,9

0
2
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

J
2
0
1

6
4
a
 R

ic
k
m

a
n
s
w

o
rt

h
 R

o
a
d

R
D

2
,1

6
3
 

0
 

2
,1

6
3
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
6
3

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
.

C
C

1
4
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
4
,0

0
0
 

1
4
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
6
6

V
o
ic

e
 A

u
to

m
a
te

d
 T

e
le

p
h
o
n
y

D
N

3
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
0
,0

0
0
 

3
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
7
2

A
s
c
o
t 

R
o
a
d
 R

e
g
e
a
ri

n
g
 V

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

A
B

3
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
5
,0

0
0
 

3
5
,0

0
0
 

W
A

6
9
2
6

IC
T

W
A

A
1
0
9

IC
T

 –
 P

C
s
, 

P
ri

n
te

rs
 &

 S
e
rv

e
rs

A
P

A
2
9
8
,0

0
0
 

4
5
,1

3
7
 

4
0
,1

1
6
 

7
2
,7

4
7
 

(1
5
,0

8
1
)

0
 

5
7
,6

6
6
 

5
7
,6

6
6
 

7
0
,0

0
0
 

1
5
,0

8
1
 

0
 

8
5
,0

8
1
 

7
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
2
6

e
-D

e
m

o
c
ra

c
y

A
P

A
4
6
,1

7
6
 

1
0
0
 

1
8
,0

5
2
 

6
,0

0
0
 

1
0
,0

2
4
 

1
6
,0

2
4
 

1
6
,0

2
4
 

6
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

6
,0

0
0
 

6
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
1
7

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

R
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
A

P
A

4
0
,1

1
0
 

1
1
0
 

0
 

4
0
,0

0
0
 

(1
0
,1

7
6
)

0
 

2
9
,8

2
4
 

2
9
,8

2
4
 

0
 

1
0
,1

7
6
 

0
 

1
0
,1

7
6
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
3
4

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

y
s
te

m
A

P
A

1
9
4
,4

2
1
 

3
,1

0
5
 

5
6
,3

1
5
 

4
5
,0

0
0
 

(5
7
,9

3
9
)

0
 

(1
2
,9

3
9
)

(1
2
,9

3
9
)

4
5
,0

0
0
 

5
7
,9

3
9
 

0
 

1
0
2
,9

3
9
 

4
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
3
2

IC
T

 -
 D

M
P

A
P

A
1
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

1
5
,0

0
0
 

(1
5
,0

0
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
3
6

T
h
in

 C
lie

n
t 

R
e
fr

e
s
h

A
P

A
7
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

7
0
,0

0
0
 

(7
0
,0

0
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

7
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

7
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
8
0

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
C

C
9
2
,9

1
5
 

2
7
,6

3
9
 

3
4
,2

7
5
 

3
,0

0
0
 

(5
,6

8
3
)

1
4
,0

0
0
 

1
1
,3

1
7
 

1
1
,3

1
7
 

0
 

5
,6

8
3
 

1
4
,0

0
0
 

1
9
,6

8
3
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

6
9
2
7

IC
T

 -
 S

h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

W
N

C
0
3
5

S
h
S

 -
 G

o
v
t 

C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

S
e
c
 X

tr
a
N

e
t

A
P

A
5
6
,0

0
3
 

0
 

7
,5

6
3
 

4
0
,0

0
0
 

(4
0
,5

9
0
)

8
,0

0
0
 

7
,4

1
0
 

7
,8

5
0
 

0
 

4
0
,5

9
0
 

0
 

4
0
,5

9
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
3
4

S
h
S

 -
 S

e
rv

e
r 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

A
P

A
1
2
1
,3

4
2
 

0
 

0
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

(3
3
,2

3
0
)

2
0
,0

0
0
 

8
6
,7

7
0
 

8
8
,1

1
2
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

3
3
,2

3
0
 

(2
0
,0

0
0
)

3
3
,2

3
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
9
8
2

S
h
S

 -
 H

a
rd

w
a
re

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
A

P
A

2
6
,8

0
7
 

0
 

2
,3

5
2
 

1
8
,3

4
8
 

(3
8
0
)

(3
4
8
)

1
7
,6

2
0
 

2
4
,0

7
5
 

0
 

3
8
0
 

0
 

3
8
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
2
4

S
h
S

 -
 I

m
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 S
A

N
A

P
A

2
5
6
,6

2
0
 

0
 

2
5
6
,6

2
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
2
5

S
h
S

 -
 H

R
 C

P
D

 M
o
d
u
le

T
B

5
,9

7
3
 

0
 

5
,9

7
3
 

3
,3

1
6
 

(3
,3

1
6
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
3
5

S
h
S

 -
 0

9
1
0
 C

/f
w

d
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 S

y
s
te

m
A

P
O

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
4
3

S
h
S

 -
 0

9
1
0
 C

/f
w

d
 H

R
 &

 P
a
y
ro

ll 
S

y
s
te

m
T

B
8
0
,1

4
6
 

8
0
,1

4
6
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
4
4

S
h
S

 -
 R

e
v
s
/B

e
n
s
 S

y
s
te

m
P

A
1
,9

8
5
 

0
 

1
,9

8
5
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
4
5

S
h
S

 -
 C

o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y

A
P

O
1
2
3
,7

5
3
 

8
2
,4

3
6
 

4
1
,3

1
7
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
3
6

S
h
S

 -
 E

-A
c
a
d
e
m

y
P

A
4
2
,6

9
4
 

0
 

1
8
,8

2
0
 

1
8
,8

2
0
 

4
2
,6

9
4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
3
7

S
h
S

 -
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

P
A

3
3
,2

9
7
 

(3
1
0
)

3
3
,3

0
0
 

3
2
,9

9
0
 

3
2
,9

8
7
 

3
1
0
 

0
 

3
1
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
6
0
1

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 /

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

A
T

2
,5

0
7
,7

0
6
 

0
 

4
0
0
,0

0
0
 

4
0
8
,0

7
0
 

5
,1

5
6
 

4
1
3
,2

2
6
 

4
1
3
,2

2
6
 

4
0
8
,0

7
0
 

0
 

1
4
4
,4

0
0
 

5
5
2
,4

7
0
 

5
6
1
,4

6
0
 

5
8
0
,5

5
0
 

W
A

6
9
9
9

O
ld

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
S

c
h
e
m

e
s

n
/a

4
,6

9
6
,0

4
9
 

4
,6

9
6
,0

4
9
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

6
9
9
0

N
e
w

 S
c
h

e
m

e
s
 R

e
q

u
ir

in
g

 A
p

p
ro

v
a
l

0
 

N
o
n
e

T
o

ta
l 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

4
5
,3

3
5
,8

1
2
 

8
,5

4
7
,5

6
6
 

9
,5

8
7
,5

0
0
 

1
2
,6

9
7
,2

1
6
 

(4
,1

4
4
,0

4
9
)

8
3
,4

9
8
 

8
,6

3
6
,6

6
5
 

8
,7

8
3
,1

1
9
 

6
,8

5
4
,5

7
0
 

4
,1

4
4
,0

4
9
 

(3
,5

0
4
,2

7
5
)

7
,4

9
4
,3

4
4
 

7
,3

1
8
,2

3
9
 

3
,6

0
5
,0

4
4
 

0
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e

s
2

0
1

1
/1

2

Page 76



C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 -

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

2
0

0
9

-1
5

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
3

/1
4

2
0

1
4

/1
5

6
-Y

e
a
r

C
a
p

it
a
l

C
a
p

it
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

R
e
p

h
a
s
in

g
In

c
r/

D
e
c
r 

&
C

u
rr

e
n

t
S

p
e
n

d
O

ri
g

in
a
l

R
e
p

h
a
s
e
d

In
c
r/

D
e
c
r 

&
C

u
rr

e
n

t
O

ri
g

in
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

C
C

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 1
0
6
 F

u
n

d
e
d

 S
c
h

e
m

e
s

C
o

s
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

B
u

d
g

e
t

to
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
V

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
B

u
d

g
e
t

P
d

1
2

B
u

d
g

e
t

fr
o

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
V

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
B

u
d

g
e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£
  

  
 

£
£

£
  

  
 

£
£

£

W
N

C
0
0
1

T
o
w

n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

T
W

2
0
,7

7
7
 

2
0
,7

7
7
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
1
9

V
ic

to
ri

a
 P

a
s
s
a
g
e
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 &
 3

T
W

1
,2

2
4
 

1
,2

2
4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
0
2

A
llo

tm
e
n
ts

 -
 G

re
e
n
 T

o
ile

ts
P

R
2
3
,1

5
6
 

3
,1

5
6
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
0
4

C
o
ln

e
 V

a
lle

y
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

P
R

1
0
8
,1

3
7
 

1
,2

2
4
 

3
9
,1

2
9
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,1

4
6
 

7
,7

8
4
 

2
8
,9

3
0
 

2
8
,9

3
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

(1
,1

4
6
)

0
 

1
8
,8

5
4
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
1
8

C
o
w

 L
a
n
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

T
W

2
3
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

2
3
,0

0
0
 

(2
3
,0

0
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
3
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
3
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
2
2

M
u
lt
i-

u
s
e
 G

a
m

e
s
 a

t 
M

e
ri

d
e
n

P
R

1
2
3
,1

5
6
 

3
,1

5
6
 

0
 

1
2
0
,0

0
0
 

(1
2
0
,0

0
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
1
4

O
x
h
e
y
 P

a
rk

 B
ri

d
g
e

T
W

3
4
7
,7

7
6
 

3
8
,4

1
4
 

2
1
0
,2

9
3
 

0
 

(8
8
,1

1
4
)

1
0
2
,0

0
0
 

1
3
,8

8
6
 

1
0
,9

5
5
 

0
 

8
8
,1

1
4
 

0
 

8
8
,1

1
4
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
2
1

W
o
o
d
s
id

e
 P

la
y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

 -
 G

re
e
n
 F

la
g

P
R

2
0
3
,7

5
2
 

1
1
,5

7
2
 

1
5
6
,5

4
1
 

3
4
,0

0
0
 

0
 

3
4
,0

0
0
 

3
5
,6

3
9
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
1
7

K
in

g
 G

e
o
rg

e
 V

 N
a
tu

re
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
P

R
4
5
,6

1
5
 

3
,1

5
6
 

3
7
,4

5
3
 

5
,0

0
0
 

6
 

5
,0

0
6
 

5
,0

0
6
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
2
3

C
a
s
s
io

p
a
rk

 P
h
a
s
e
 2

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
R

7
,9

6
7
 

0
 

0
 

8
,0

0
0
 

(6
)

7
,9

9
4
 

7
,9

6
7
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
2
4

C
a
s
s
io

p
a
rk

 S
ig

n
a
g
e

P
R

9
,0

1
6
 

3
,1

5
6
 

0
 

5
,8

6
0
 

0
 

5
,8

6
0
 

5
,8

6
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
2
7

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 C

y
c
le

 P
a
rk

T
W

1
5
,4

5
7
 

2
,0

5
6
 

1
3
,4

0
4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

(3
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
2
8

T
o
w

n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 P
h
a
s
e
  

2
T

W
3
1
,0

1
0
 

5
,7

1
4
 

1
3
,1

6
8
 

2
7
,9

5
0
 

0
 

2
7
,9

5
0
 

1
2
,1

2
9
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
3
0

K
n
u
ts

fo
rd

 P
la

y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

s
 -

 c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

M
S

4
6
4
,0

4
0
 

9
,3

5
6
 

5
4
,4

1
2
 

4
3
0
,5

8
8
 

0
 

4
3
0
,5

8
8
 

4
0
0
,2

7
2
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
2
0

H
e
m

p
s
te

a
d
 R

o
a
d
 T

o
u
c
a
n

T
W

1
,2

2
4
 

1
,2

2
4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
2
5

C
a
s
s
io

b
u
ry

 P
a
rk

 S
tu

d
y
 A

n
c
ill

a
ry

 F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

P
R

2
9
,9

8
6
 

3
,1

5
6
 

7
,8

7
8
 

1
8
,9

8
2
 

0
 

1
8
,9

8
2
 

1
8
,9

5
3
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
3
0
0

C
ro

x
le

y
 R

a
il 

L
in

k
J
C

1
,1

2
5
,8

4
6
 

0
 

0
 

5
3
6
,0

0
0
 

(5
3
5
,7

0
0
)

0
 

3
0
0
 

1
4
6
 

0
 

5
3
5
,7

0
0
 

0
 

5
3
5
,7

0
0
 

0
 

5
9
0
,0

0
0
 

W
N

F
0
1
0

W
a
te

rf
ie

ld
 R

e
c
 &

 K
n
u
ts

fo
rd

 P
G

P
R

1
6
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

1
6
0
,0

0
0
 

(1
5
3
,9

6
1
)

0
 

6
,0

3
9
 

6
,0

3
9
 

0
 

1
5
3
,9

6
1
 

0
 

1
5
3
,9

6
1
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

C
0
1
1

O
x
h
e
y
 P

a
rk

P
R

1
3
8
,9

1
7
 

9
,1

0
2
 

6
1
,8

3
6
 

6
7
,9

7
9
 

0
 

6
7
,9

7
9
 

6
7
,9

7
9
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

F
0
1
2

S
t 

J
o
h
n
s
 R

o
a
d
 P

la
y
g
ro

u
n
d

P
R

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

F
0
1
3

C
h
a
te

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
P

la
y
g
ro

u
n
d

P
R

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

F
0
1
7

O
x
h
e
y
 V

ill
a
g
e
 G

re
e
n

P
R

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
5
,0

0
0
 

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

F
0
1
8

L
e
a
 F

a
rm

 P
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d

P
R

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

F
0
1
9

S
ta

m
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d
 P

la
y
g
ro

u
n
d

P
R

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
5
,0

0
0
 

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

F
0
2
0

A
s
p
e
n
 P

a
rk

 D
ri

v
e
 P

la
y
g
ro

u
n
d

P
R

2
4
,8

6
9
 

0
 

2
4
,8

6
9
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

F
0
2
1

N
o
rb

u
ry

 A
v
e
n
u
e
 P

la
y
g
ro

u
n
d

P
R

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

6
,6

3
2
 

1
8
,3

6
8
 

0
 

1
8
,3

6
8
 

1
8
,3

6
8
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
N

F
0
2
2

J
e
lli

c
o
e
 R

o
a
d
 P

la
y
g
ro

u
n
d

P
R

2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
3
,6

9
0
 

1
1
,3

1
0
 

0
 

1
1
,3

1
0
 

1
1
,3

1
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
5
3

C
a
s
s
io

b
u
ry

 P
a
rk

 -
 S

h
e
p
h
e
rd

s
 R

o
a
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e

P
R

8
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

8
5
,0

0
0
 

(8
5
,0

0
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

8
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

8
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
5
4

C
a
s
s
io

b
u
ry

 P
a
rk

 -
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

e
a
 p

a
v
ill

io
n

P
R

1
4
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

1
4
0
,0

0
0
 

(1
4
0
,0

0
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
4
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
4
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

A
1
5
5

C
a
s
s
io

b
u
ry

 P
a
rk

 -
 t

o
ile

t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

P
R

2
4
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

2
4
0
,0

0
0
 

(2
4
0
,0

0
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
4
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
4
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
2
6

S
ta

m
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d
 R

e
c
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

1
7
,0

0
0
 

(1
0
4
)

1
7
,0

0
0
 

1
6
,8

9
6
 

1
6
,8

9
6
 

1
0
4
 

0
 

1
0
4
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
2
7

H
a
rw

o
o
d
s
 R

e
c
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

1
4
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
4
5
,0

0
0
 

1
4
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
2
8

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

4
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

4
0
,0

0
0
 

4
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
2
9

N
o
rt

h
 W

a
tf

o
rd

 P
la

y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

s
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

5
1
,0

0
0
 

4
2
 

0
 

4
2
 

4
2
 

(4
2
)

5
1
,0

0
0
 

5
0
,9

5
8
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
3
0

S
t.

 J
o
h
n
s
 R

o
a
d
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

3
1
,0

0
0
 

(5
,6

7
6
)

3
1
,0

0
0
 

2
5
,3

2
4
 

2
5
,3

2
4
 

5
,6

7
6
 

0
 

5
,6

7
6
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
3
1

H
im

a
la

y
a
n
 W

a
y
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
3
2

J
e
lli

c
o
e
 R

o
a
d
 P

la
y
 A

re
a
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

P
R

1
1
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
1
,0

0
0
 

1
1
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
3
3

S
tr

ip
lin

g
 R

o
a
d
 P

la
y
 A

re
a
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

P
R

1
0
,0

0
0
 

(1
0
,0

0
0
)

1
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
3
4

C
o
u
rt

la
n
d
s
 C

lo
s
e
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

4
0
,0

0
0
 

(1
,0

0
8
)

4
0
,0

0
0
 

3
8
,9

9
2
 

3
8
,9

9
3
 

1
,0

0
8
 

0
 

1
,0

0
8
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
3
5

S
k
a
te

 P
a
rk

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

P
R

3
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
3
6

E
s
tc

o
u
rt

 R
o
a
d
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

P
R

1
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
5
,0

0
0
 

1
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
3
7

O
x
h
e
y
 G

re
e
n
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

1
0
,2

0
0
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

1
0
,2

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
3
8

G
o
o
d
w

o
o
d
 R

e
c
 P

la
y
 A

re
a
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

P
R

2
9
,2

7
4
 

(7
,1

6
0
)

3
0
,0

0
0
 

2
2
,8

4
0
 

2
2
,1

1
4
 

7
,1

6
0
 

0
 

7
,1

6
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
3
9

W
a
tf

o
rd

 F
ie

ld
s
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

(2
0
,0

0
0
)

2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
4
0

E
a
s
t 

D
ri

v
e
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

1
2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
2
0
,0

0
0
 

1
2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
4
1

H
a
re

b
re

a
k
s
 R

e
c
 G

ro
u
n
d
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

1
2
1
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
2
1
,0

0
0
 

1
2
1
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
4
2

W
a
te

rf
ie

ld
s
 R

e
c
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
4
3

M
e
ri

d
e
n
 P

a
rk

 P
la

y
 A

re
a

P
R

2
5
0
,0

0
0
 

7
2
,0

0
0
 

1
5
0
,0

0
0
 

2
2
2
,0

0
0
 

2
2
2
,0

0
0
 

(7
2
,0

0
0
)

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

2
8
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
4
4

B
e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

6
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

6
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
4
5

S
o
u
th

w
o
ld

 R
o
a
d
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

5
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

5
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
4
6

R
id

g
e
h
u
rs

t 
A

v
e
n
u
e
 P

la
y
 A

re
a

P
R

5
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

5
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
4
7

C
a
llo

w
la

n
d
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d

P
R

4
6
0
,0

0
0
 

1
2
,9

1
4
 

0
 

1
2
,9

1
4
 

1
2
,9

1
4
 

(1
2
,9

1
4
)

4
6
0
,0

0
0
 

4
4
7
,0

8
6
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
4
8

R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d

P
R

3
3
0
,0

0
0
 

(3
3
0
,0

0
0
)

3
3
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

3
3
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

3
3
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
4
9

O
x
h
e
y
 P

a
rk

P
R

5
5
0
,0

0
0
 

2
1
,0

0
0
 

0
 

2
1
,0

0
0
 

2
1
,0

0
0
 

(2
1
,0

0
0
)

5
5
0
,0

0
0
 

5
2
9
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
5
0

K
in

g
 G

e
o
rg

e
 V

 P
la

y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

P
R

3
5
0
,0

0
0
 

1
2
,7

2
3
 

0
 

1
2
,7

2
3
 

1
2
,7

2
3
 

(1
2
,7

2
3
)

3
5
0
,0

0
0
 

3
3
7
,2

7
7
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
5
1

C
o
ln

e
 R

iv
e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t

P
R

9
9
2
,2

1
6
 

(2
0
2
,3

9
7
)

2
4
2
,2

1
6
 

3
9
,8

1
9
 

3
9
,8

1
9
 

2
0
2
,3

9
7
 

2
5
0
,0

0
0
 

4
5
2
,3

9
7
 

2
5
0
,0

0
0
 

2
5
0
,0

0
0
 

W
A

B
9
5
2

F
e
rn

 W
a
y
 P

la
y
 a

re
a
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
P

R
1
5
,0

0
0
 

(1
5
,0

0
0
)

1
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

1
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
5
3

R
a
d
le

t 
R

o
a
d
 M

U
G

A
P

R
3
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
0
,0

0
0
 

3
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
5
4

K
n
u
ts

fo
rd

 R
o
a
d

P
R

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

(9
9
,0

2
1
)

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

9
7
9
 

9
7
9
 

9
9
,0

2
1
 

0
 

9
9
,0

2
1
 

0
 

0
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e

s
2

0
1

2
/1

3
2

0
1

1
/1

2

Page 77



C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 -

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

2
0

0
9

-1
5

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
3

/1
4

2
0

1
4

/1
5

6
-Y

e
a
r

C
a
p

it
a
l

C
a
p

it
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

R
e
p

h
a
s
in

g
In

c
r/

D
e
c
r 

&
C

u
rr

e
n

t
S

p
e
n

d
O

ri
g

in
a
l

R
e
p

h
a
s
e
d

In
c
r/

D
e
c
r 

&
C

u
rr

e
n

t
O

ri
g

in
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

C
o

s
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

B
u

d
g

e
t

to
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
V

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
B

u
d

g
e
t

P
d

1
2

B
u

d
g

e
t

fr
o

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
V

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
B

u
d

g
e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£
  

  
 

£
£

£
  

  
 

£
£

£

W
A

B
9
5
5

L
e
a
v
e
s
d
e
n
 G

re
e
n
 R

e
c
 M

U
G

A
P

R
5
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

5
0
,0

0
0
 

5
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
5
6

N
o
rt

h
 W

a
tf

o
rd

 C
e
m

e
te

ry
P

R
7
5
,0

0
0
 

4
,0

0
0
 

0
 

4
,0

0
0
 

4
,0

0
0
 

(4
,0

0
0
)

7
5
,0

0
0
 

7
1
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
5
7

V
ic

a
ra

g
e
 R

o
a
d
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
P

R
7
5
,0

0
0
 

4
,0

0
0
 

0
 

4
,0

0
0
 

4
,0

0
0
 

(4
,0

0
0
)

7
5
,0

0
0
 

7
1
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
5
8

L
o
c
a
l 
P

a
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

P
R

2
5
0
,0

0
0
 

4
,5

7
3
 

6
2
,5

0
0
 

6
7
,0

7
3
 

6
7
,0

7
3
 

(4
,5

7
3
)

6
2
,5

0
0
 

5
7
,9

2
7
 

6
2
,5

0
0
 

6
2
,5

0
0
 

W
A

B
9
5
9

G
a
rs

to
n
 P

a
rk

P
R

6
2
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

6
2
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
6
0

W
ig

g
e
n
h
a
ll 

A
llo

tm
e
n
ts

P
R

7
5
,0

0
0
 

(2
3
,8

0
1
)

7
5
,0

0
0
 

5
1
,1

9
9
 

5
1
,1

9
9
 

2
3
,8

0
1
 

0
 

2
3
,8

0
1
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
6
1

C
h
e
rr

y
 T

re
e
 A

llo
tm

e
n
ts

P
R

3
3
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
3
,0

0
0
 

3
3
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

B
9
6
2

L
o
c
a
l 
N

a
tu

re
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

P
R

8
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,1

7
5
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
1
,1

7
5
 

2
1
,1

7
5
 

(1
,1

7
5
)

2
0
,0

0
0
 

1
8
,8

2
5
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

W
A

B
2
1
1

W
a
tf

o
rd

 M
u
s
e
u
m

T
W

7
6
,4

3
5
 

1
5
9
 

2
,5

0
0
 

2
,6

5
9
 

2
,6

5
9
 

(1
5
9
)

7
3
,9

3
5
 

7
3
,7

7
6
 

W
A

B
9
6
4

C
e
n
te

n
n
ia

l 
H

o
u
s
e
 L

a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 &

 M
a
in

te
n
a
c
e

B
C

1
,0

5
0
 

0
 

4
5
0
 

4
5
0
 

3
9
0
 

2
1
0
 

W
A

6
9
2
8

T
o

ta
l 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 1
0
6
 F

u
n

d
e
d

 S
c
h

e
m

e
s

8
,4

5
0
,1

0
0
 

1
1
6
,4

4
3
 

7
2
4
,3

0
3
 

2
,0

1
2
,0

3
7
 

(1
,9

2
6
,2

1
0
)

1
,2

4
5
,0

0
0
 

1
,3

3
0
,8

2
7
 

1
,2

8
2
,6

5
9
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,9

2
6
,2

1
0
 

2
,8

5
2
,8

8
5
 

4
,7

9
9
,0

9
5
 

6
0
4
,8

9
0
 

9
2
2
,7

1
0
 

0
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e

s
2

0
1

1
/1

2
2

0
1

2
/1

3

Page 78



C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 -

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

2
0

0
9

-1
5

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
3

/1
4

2
0

1
4

/1
5

6
-Y

e
a
r

C
a
p

it
a
l

C
a
p

it
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

R
e
p

h
a
s
in

g
In

c
r/

D
e
c
r 

&
C

u
rr

e
n

t
S

p
e
n

d
O

ri
g

in
a
l

R
e
p

h
a
s
e
d

In
c
r/

D
e
c
r 

&
C

u
rr

e
n

t
O

ri
g

in
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

C
o

s
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

B
u

d
g

e
t

to
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
V

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
B

u
d

g
e
t

P
d

1
2

B
u

d
g

e
t

fr
o

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
V

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
B

u
d

g
e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£
  

  
 

£
£

£
  

  
 

£
£

£

W
A

6
9
2
0

K
e
y
 P

ro
je

c
ts

1
8
,7

8
5
,4

9
1
 

8
5
0
,9

5
9
 

3
,9

1
0
,6

4
5
 

7
,5

5
0
,6

3
6
 

(2
,6

1
3
,2

2
3
)

0
 

4
,9

3
7
,4

1
3
 

5
,1

4
3
,6

3
3
 

4
,2

6
0
,5

0
0
 

2
,6

1
3
,2

2
3
 

(4
,1

4
6
,7

4
3
)

2
,7

2
6
,9

8
0
 

4
,7

6
3
,7

7
9
 

1
,3

8
9
,4

9
4
 

W
A

6
9
2
1

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
,4

9
4
,9

3
9
 

7
2
2
,8

2
4
 

1
,9

6
6
,3

2
5
 

5
0
8
,3

0
0
 

(1
8
6
,8

1
6
)

0
 

3
2
1
,4

8
4
 

2
6
6
,9

7
5
 

6
9
5
,0

0
0
 

1
8
6
,8

1
6
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

9
0
1
,8

1
6
 

3
3
7
,0

0
0
 

3
0
0
,0

0
0
 

W
A

6
9
2
2

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 &

 L
e
is

u
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,4

1
8
,0

0
1
 

4
5
0
,3

9
6
 

5
1
8
,7

3
5
 

5
2
4
,3

3
3
 

(1
7
0
,0

0
0
)

(8
4
,9

3
8
)

2
6
9
,3

9
5
 

2
7
8
,8

7
1
 

0
 

1
7
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

1
7
0
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

6
9
2
3

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

5
,0

9
3
,8

4
8
 

7
9
5
,2

8
0
 

5
7
1
,0

8
5
 

1
,3

0
7
,4

1
5
 

(5
2
8
,2

1
5
)

0
 

7
7
9
,2

0
0
 

7
7
9
,2

0
0
 

7
5
0
,0

0
0
 

5
2
8
,2

1
5
 

7
0
,0

6
8
 

1
,3

4
8
,2

8
3
 

8
0
0
,0

0
0
 

8
0
0
,0

0
0
 

W
A

6
9
2
4

P
a
rk

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
2
2
,7

5
9
 

5
6
,5

4
9
 

1
9
6
,2

1
0
 

6
5
,0

0
0
 

(1
7
,1

4
0
)

0
 

4
7
,8

6
0
 

4
7
,8

6
0
 

0
 

1
7
,1

4
0
 

3
5
,0

0
0
 

5
2
,1

4
0
 

3
5
,0

0
0
 

3
5
,0

0
0
 

W
A

6
9
2
5

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

6
,4

1
1
,7

7
6
 

7
3
6
,8

3
5
 

1
,5

5
9
,9

3
2
 

1
,9

2
0
,0

5
1
 

(3
8
0
,2

6
6
)

6
2
,8

0
0
 

1
,6

0
2
,5

8
5
 

1
,5

5
5
,7

4
4
 

6
0
0
,0

0
0
 

3
8
0
,2

6
6
 

3
7
9
,0

0
0
 

1
,3

5
9
,2

6
6
 

7
0
0
,0

0
0
 

5
0
0
,0

0
0
 

W
A

6
9
2
6

IC
T

 
7
5
6
,6

2
1
 

7
6
,0

9
2
 

1
4
8
,7

5
9
 

2
5
1
,7

4
7
 

(1
7
3
,8

7
9
)

2
4
,0

2
4
 

1
0
1
,8

9
2
 

1
0
1
,8

9
2
 

1
2
1
,0

0
0
 

1
7
3
,8

7
9
 

1
4
,0

0
0
 

3
0
8
,8

7
9
 

1
2
1
,0

0
0
 

0
 

W
A

6
9
2
7

IC
T

 -
 S

h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
7
4
8
,6

2
0
 

1
6
2
,5

8
2
 

3
1
5
,8

1
0
 

1
6
1
,6

6
4
 

(7
4
,5

1
0
)

7
6
,4

5
6
 

1
6
3
,6

1
0
 

1
9
5
,7

1
8
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

7
4
,5

1
0
 

(2
0
,0

0
0
)

7
4
,5

1
0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

6
9
2
9

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 /

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

2
,5

0
7
,7

0
6
 

0
 

4
0
0
,0

0
0
 

4
0
8
,0

7
0
 

0
 

5
,1

5
6
 

4
1
3
,2

2
6
 

4
1
3
,2

2
6
 

4
0
8
,0

7
0
 

0
 

1
4
4
,4

0
0
 

5
5
2
,4

7
0
 

5
6
1
,4

6
0
 

5
8
0
,5

5
0
 

W
A

6
9
2
8

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6
 F

u
n
d
e
d
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s

8
,4

5
0
,1

0
0
 

1
1
6
,4

4
3
 

7
2
4
,3

0
3
 

2
,0

1
2
,0

3
7
 

(1
,9

2
6
,2

1
0
)

1
,2

4
5
,0

0
0
 

1
,3

3
0
,8

2
7
 

1
,2

8
2
,6

5
9
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,9

2
6
,2

1
0
 

2
,8

5
2
,8

8
5
 

4
,7

9
9
,0

9
5
 

6
0
4
,8

9
0
 

9
2
2
,7

1
0
 

W
A

6
9
9
9

O
ld

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s

4
,6

9
6
,0

4
9
 

4
,6

9
6
,0

4
9
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

6
9
9
0

N
e
w

 S
c
h
e
m

e
s
 R

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 A

p
p
ro

v
a
l

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

W
A

4
9
0
0

T
o

ta
l 

A
ll

 S
c
h

e
m

e
s

5
3
,7

8
5
,9

1
2
 

8
,6

6
4
,0

0
9
 

1
0
,3

1
1
,8

0
3
 

1
4
,7

0
9
,2

5
3
 

(6
,0

7
0
,2

5
9
)

1
,3

2
8
,5

0
1
 

9
,9

6
7
,4

9
2
 

1
0
,0

6
5
,7

7
8
 

6
,8

7
4
,5

7
0
 

6
,0

7
0
,2

5
9
 

(6
5
1
,3

8
9
)

1
2
,2

9
3
,4

3
9
 

7
,9

2
3
,1

2
9
 

4
,5

2
7
,7

5
4
 

0
 

(0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
0

0
9

-1
5

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
3

/1
4

2
0

1
4

/1
5

6
-Y

e
a
r

C
a
p

it
a
l

C
a
p

it
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

R
e
p

h
a
s
in

g
In

c
r/

D
e
c
r 

&
C

u
rr

e
n

t
S

p
e
n

d
O

ri
g

in
a
l

R
e
p

h
a
s
e
d

In
c
r/

D
e
c
r 

&
C

u
rr

e
n

t
O

ri
g

in
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

C
o

s
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

B
u

d
g

e
t

to
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
V

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
B

u
d

g
e
t

P
d

1
2

B
u

d
g

e
t

fr
o

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
V

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
B

u
d

g
e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£
  

  
 

£
£

£
  

  
 

£
£

£

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
4
5
,3

3
5
,8

1
2
 

8
,5

4
7
,5

6
6
 

9
,5

8
7
,5

0
0
 

1
2
,6

9
7
,2

1
6
 

(4
,1

4
4
,0

4
9
)

8
3
,4

9
8
 

8
,6

3
6
,6

6
5
 

8
,7

8
3
,1

1
9
 

6
,8

5
4
,5

7
0
 

4
,1

4
4
,0

4
9
 

(3
,5

0
4
,2

7
5
)

7
,4

9
4
,3

4
4
 

7
,3

1
8
,2

3
9
 

3
,6

0
5
,0

4
4
 

S
1
0
6
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
8
,4

5
0
,1

0
0
 

1
1
6
,4

4
3
 

7
2
4
,3

0
3
 

2
,0

1
2
,0

3
7
 

(1
,9

2
6
,2

1
0
)

1
,2

4
5
,0

0
0
 

1
,3

3
0
,8

2
7
 

1
,2

8
2
,6

5
9
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,9

2
6
,2

1
0
 

2
,8

5
2
,8

8
5
 

4
,7

9
9
,0

9
5
 

6
0
4
,8

9
0
 

9
2
2
,7

1
0
 

T
o

ta
l 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
5
3
,7

8
5
,9

1
2
 

8
,6

6
4
,0

0
9
 

1
0
,3

1
1
,8

0
3
 

1
4
,7

0
9
,2

5
3
 

(6
,0

7
0
,2

5
9
)

1
,3

2
8
,4

9
8
 

9
,9

6
7
,4

9
2
 

1
0
,0

6
5
,7

7
8
 

6
,8

7
4
,5

7
0
 

6
,0

7
0
,2

5
9
 

(6
5
1
,3

9
0
)

1
2
,2

9
3
,4

3
9
 

7
,9

2
3
,1

2
9
 

4
,5

2
7
,7

5
4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

G
ra

n
ts

 &
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s

3
0
0
,0

0
0
 

6
0
3
,7

0
5
 

2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

4
9
,7

4
1
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
8
,2

3
6
,6

6
5
 

8
,3

8
1
,6

7
3
 

7
,1

9
4
,3

4
4
 

7
,0

1
8
,2

3
9
 

3
,3

0
5
,0

4
4
 

S
1
0
6
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s

1
,3

3
0
,8

2
7
 

1
,0

3
0
,6

5
9
 

4
,7

9
9
,0

9
5
 

6
0
4
,8

9
0
 

9
2
2
,7

1
0
 

T
o

ta
l 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

F
in

a
n

c
in

g
9
,9

6
7
,4

9
2
 

1
0
,0

6
5
,7

7
8
 

1
2
,2

9
3
,4

3
9
 

7
,9

2
3
,1

2
9
 

4
,5

2
7
,7

5
4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3
2
0
1
3
/1

4
2
0
1
4
/1

5

C
u

rr
e
n

t
S

p
e
n

d
C

u
rr

e
n

t
O

ri
g

in
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 -
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 R

E
C

E
IP

T
S

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
d

1
2

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
£

£
£

£

B
a
la

n
c
e
 B

ro
u
g
h
t 

F
o
rw

a
rd

1
9
,4

1
2
,6

8
5
 

1
9
,4

1
2
,6

8
5
 

1
2
,8

7
2
,0

9
3
 

8
,6

7
7
,7

4
9
 

3
,1

5
9
,5

1
0
 

U
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

F
in

a
n
c
in

g
(8

,2
3
6
,6

6
5
)

(8
,3

8
1
,6

7
3
)

(7
,1

9
4
,3

4
4
)

(7
,0

1
8
,2

3
9
)

(3
,3

0
5
,0

4
4
)

N
e
w

 R
e
c
e
ip

ts
1
,5

0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,8

4
1
,0

8
1
 

3
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,5

0
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

B
a
la

n
c
e
 C

a
rr

ie
d

 F
o

rw
a
rd

1
2
,6

7
6
,0

2
0
 

1
2
,8

7
2
,0

9
3
 

8
,6

7
7
,7

4
9
 

3
,1

5
9
,5

1
0
 

8
5
4
,4

6
6
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3
2
0
1
3
/1

4
2
0
1
4
/1

5

C
u

rr
e
n

t
S

p
e
n

d
C

u
rr

e
n

t
O

ri
g

in
a
l

O
ri

g
in

a
l

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 -
 S

1
0
6

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
d

1
2

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
£

£
£

£

B
a
la

n
c
e
 B

ro
u
g
h
t 

F
o
rw

a
rd

5
,8

9
8
,1

4
1
 

5
,8

9
8
,1

4
1
 

5
,5

1
1
,5

6
2
 

1
,1

6
2
,6

0
6
 

8
2
7
,6

6
7
 

U
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

F
in

a
n
c
in

g
(1

,3
3
0
,8

2
7
)

(1
,0

3
0
,6

5
9
)

(4
,7

9
9
,0

9
5
)

(6
0
4
,8

9
0
)

(9
2
2
,7

1
0
)

N
e
w

 R
e
c
e
ip

ts
5
0
0
,0

0
0
 

5
7
5
,1

7
9
 

3
7
5
,0

0
0
 

2
5
0
,0

0
0
 

1
5
0
,0

0
0
 

In
te

re
s
t 

@
 1

.2
1
5
1
%

6
8
,9

0
1
 

6
8
,9

0
1
 

7
5
,1

3
9
 

1
9
,9

5
1
 

1
3
,5

3
2
 

B
a
la

n
c
e
 C

a
rr

ie
d

 F
o

rw
a
rd

5
,1

3
6
,2

1
5
 

5
,5

1
1
,5

6
2
 

1
,1

6
2
,6

0
6
 

8
2
7
,6

6
7
 

6
8
,4

8
9
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e

s
2

0
1

1
/1

2
2

0
1

2
/1

3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
1

/1
2

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e

s

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

Report to: Budget Panel 

Date of meeting: 11th September 2012 

Report of: Head of Strategic Finance  

Title: Finance Digest 2012/2013: Period 4 (end of July) 
 
 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This report informs the Budget Panel of the reported budgetary variances as at end 
of July 2012.  
 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 To consider the Finance Digest as at the end of period 4. 
 

  
 
 
 
Contact Officer: 
For further information on this report please contact Bernard Clarke, Head of 
Strategic Finance, telephone extension 8189, email bernard.clarke@watford.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 8

Page 81



 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION 

 
3.1 The Finance Digest monitors the Council’s expenditure and income throughout 

the financial year. Where variances are adverse then Heads of Service are 
required to identify compensating savings wherever possible. For example, during 
2011/2012 an overspend of circa £800k was forecast at one point but this was 
finally managed down to an underlying overspend of £322k.   
 

3.2 The Period 4 (end of July) monitor has identified few variances and this is largely 
due to key staff being fully engaged on one or all of the following: 
 

• Health Campus tender evaluations 

• Charter Place negotiations with Capital Shopping Centres 

• ICT tender evaluations 

• Waste, Recycling, Street Cleansing, Parks and Open Spaces tender 
preparation 

• Local Council Tax Benefit Scheme 
 
This is not a comprehensive list of pressures currently being experienced but does 
indicate some of the issues being dealt with. 
 

3.3 To provide the Budget Panel with some reassurance, the salaries budgets are 
well under control and the majority of other heads of expenditure and income have 
been regularly monitored by Heads of Service. The two key risk areas are rent 
income related to commercial property and the Housing Benefit cost centre (due 
to the size of the budgets and potential volatility). I would anticipate providing a full 
review of these  cost centres as part of the period 5 Finance Digest report. 

  
 
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 
4.1 

 
These have been included within the report. 
 

 
5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
 
5.1 

 
There are no legal implications arising out of this report. 
 
 

 
6.0 POTENTIAL RISKS 
  

Potential Risk Likelihood Impact Overall 
Score 

That the Council’s Budget overspends and 
the use of unplanned reserves is the 
consequence 

       3      3      9 

                     

 
 

Page 82



 

7.0 EQUALITIES 
 
7.1 

 
There are no equality implications arising out of the period 4 Finance Digest. 
 

 
 
Appendices 
 
Finance Digest Period 4 (end of July) 

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



FINANCE DIGEST

Revenue Financial Monitoring at

Period 4

(July 2012)

Page 85



Part 1 - Budget Monitoring

Part 2 - Performance Indicators

The digest reflects the Council’s latest forecast of its financial position for the year,

assessing expected spend against the agreed budget and split into service area. It also

includes information on key risks and volatile budgets (I.E. income streams subject to

economic conditions) including any action taken to mitigate their impact. Revenue spend

is forecast monthly whereas capital updates are provided on a quarterly basis.

This section provides up to date performance data regarding various service areas of the

Council including both front line services and support services.

Foreword

The monthly Finance Digest is a key tool for raising awareness of financial issues

throughout the Council at both member and officer level. 

If you have any comments or queries on its contents and presentation, or a suggestion

for an item to be included, please contact Nigel Pollard (Finance Manager) on ext 7198

or Gilbert Mills (Senior Accountant) on ext 7437.

The Finance Digest brings together the key indicators that describe Watford’s financial

health. It provides a regular update on the progress of spend against Council budgets

including performance within a number of discrete areas. Variances to budgets are

reported and shown in the forecast outturn for 2012/13. These variances are loaded on

to the Council's financial management system. 

������

Page 86



Debtor Monitoring 18

Key Business Indicators 19

NNDR & Council Tax Collection Rates 16

Creditor Payment Monitoring 17

Part 2 - Performance Indicators

Treasury Management Performance 15

Salaries Analysis - Table 3 14 

Summary General Fund (incl Table 1) 4 - 5

Detailed Variances by Service area - Table 2 6 - 13

Contents

Pages

Part 1 - Budget Monitoring

Revenue :-

������

Page 87



*

*

*

Sum of in year total reserve movements up to period 4

Invest to Save Reserve (£38k)

Local Authority Business Growth Incentive (LABGI) Reserve (£20k)

Anticipated Movement on Economic Impact Reserve £30k

Part 1 - Budget Monitoring

This balance of £30k is the unplanned forecast underspend for 2012/13 and comprises the following 

variations :-

This Month

0

1 - General Fund Revenue

55

55

The Mayor approved the funding of a two year appointment for a Resilience Officer post (circa £38k per

annum), employed by the CVS, who will have responsibility for supporting voluntary sector organisations to

become sustainable in the future and less reliant on the council as a source of funding. 2012/13 is the second

year of this appointment.

(38)

(20)

70

Reduced income anticipated from parking @ the Avenue

1.1 This report provides an update, in summary form, of the latest position as at 31st July 2012 (period 4) on the 

Council’s budget for the current financial year. 

1.2

The 2012/13 forecast outturn for net expenditure at the end of period 4 is predicted to be £14,925k. The 

difference of (£28k) is funded as follows :-

The 2012/13 original net general fund budget requirement was £14,897k.

Use of Invest To Save Reserve (Yr 2 funding for the post of 'Resilience Officer')

Use of LABGI Reserve (funding contribution towards 'Imagine Watford') 0

This reserve was utilised to develop opportunities and promote Watford by working with partners including the 

private sector and Watford Palace Theatre on the 'Imagine Watford' festival that took place in June 2012.

Total

£k

This Month@ Period 3

30

(28)(83)

(25)

5Other minor net variations reported in this month's digest

55

0

Forecast variations affecting Economic Impact Reserve

30

(25)

(20)

5

Total (25)

0

(20)

(38)

(20)

@ Period 3 Total

£k £k £k

700

Anticipated movement on Economic Impact Reserve (see table below)

£k £k

(25)

0

As reported in previous Finance Digest

Reduced spend relating to grant funded anti-social behaviour

������

Page 88



Table 1 - General Fund summary

General Fund Variance Summary for 2012/13 @ Period 4 (July 2012)

�

Community Services �

Environmental Services �

Planning ����

Corporate Management �

Legal and Property Services ����

�

Shared Services �

Strategic Finance ����

NET GENERAL FUND �

Budgeted Transfer To/(From) Reserves

In Year Transfer To/(From) Reserves

Rounding Adjustment

NET BUDGET REQUIREMENT

General Fund Working Balance

Opening Balance

CLOSING WORKING BALANCE

Icons

Forecast net expenditure is within budget

Forecast net expenditure is as per budget

(58) (25)

0

£000's£000's

(70)

(2,729)

503

14,897

1,350

Icons have been used to indicate the severity of the variation against budget.

TotalForecast

Variance

0

This Month

0

����

Forecast net expenditure is over budget but there is no cause for concern at this stage.

The key is as follows:

�

�

Forecast net expenditure is more than 10% and £50k over budget which is a cause for concern.

����

1,350

1,350 1,350 0

0

0

1,350 1,350 0 0

15,400 0 015,400

503 0 0 5030

3,815 3,815 0

(0.2)14,955 25 (55) (30)

(4,427) (4,419) 61 0

55 (28)

0.0

(4,358) 1.4

0.0

(2,721) (2,727)

Shared Services Implementation 30 30 0

2

0 30

0 0

0 202,162 2,162

1,492 1,492

6,346 6,346 0

Original

8,200

Budget Budget

£000's

Current

8,258

Service Area

£000's

Forecast

£000's

@ Period 3

0.0

0.1

8,215

20

0 1,492

(0.5)

2,182 0.9

6,276 (1.1)

(36)

(70)

(7) (43)

0

3,815

14,925

2

0

0

61

15,400

30

Variance

£000's %

VarianceForecast

Outturn

Variance Forecast

�����	

Page 89



T
a

b
le

 2
 -

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 b

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
s

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

P
a

rk
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

s

S
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 A
rt

s

H
o

u
s
in

g

R
o
u
n
d
in

g
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

N
o

te
s
 t

o
 A

g
re

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

R
e

a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d

in
 F

in
a

n
c

e
 D

ig
e

s
t 

P
e

ri
o

d
 3

2
,2

3
9

5
8

2
,1

8
6

0
2

,1
8

6

3
,7

7
5

5
8

3
,8

3
3

8
,2

0
0

5
8

8
,2

5
8

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

O
ri
g
in

a
l

A
g
re

e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

C
h
a
n
g
e

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

C
u
rr

e
n
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

(7
)

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

0

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

1

@
 P

e
ri

o
d

 3

(3
2

)

0

(4
3

)
8

,2
1

5
(3

6
)

2
,2

4
0

£
0
0
0
's

(5
)

£
0
0
0
's

2
,1

8
1

(5
)

£
0
0
0
's

0

2
,2

3
9

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e (7
)

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th

£
0
0
0
's

T
o
ta

l

F
o
re

c
a
s
t 1

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

(3
9

)

£
0
0
0
's

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 T

h
is

 M
o
n
th

's
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

3
,7

9
4

O
u
tt
u
rn

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 :
-

ii)
 O

th
e
r 

£
1
k
 m

in
o
r 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
.

i)
 (

£
8
k
) 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 f

re
e
 s

w
im

 a
n
d
 g

y
m

 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
.

�
�
�
�
�


Page 90



T
a

b
le

 2
 -

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 b

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
s

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

 (
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
)

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 L

ic
e

n
s
in

g

S
tr

e
e

t 
C

le
a

n
s
in

g

W
a

s
te

 &
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g

R
o
u
n
d
in

g
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

N
o

te
s
 t

o
 A

g
re

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

R
e

a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d

in
 F

in
a

n
c

e
 D

ig
e

s
t 

P
e

ri
o

d
 3

2
,5

4
8

6
,2

7
6

(7
0

)
0

0
0

6
,3

4
6

£
7
0
k
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

p
e
n
d
 f

o
r 

g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d
e
d
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

d
u
e
 t
o
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 c

lo
s
u
re

.

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

2
,0

1
7

0

6
,3

4
6

0

2
,5

4
8

0

1
,7

8
1

0

£
0
0
0
's

C
u
rr

e
n
t

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

O
ri
g
in

a
l

A
g
re

e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

C
h
a
n
g
e

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

1
,7

1
1

2
,0

1
7

(7
0

)
1

,7
8

1

0
0

2
,0

1
7

0

0
(7

0
)

2
,5

4
8

0

(7
0

)

0

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

£
0
0
0
's

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

O
u
tt
u
rn

B
u
d
g
e
t

@
 P

e
ri

o
d

 3

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th

T
o
ta

l
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 T

h
is

 M
o
n
th

's
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

£
0
0
0
's

�
�
�
�
��

Page 91



T
a

b
le

 2
 -

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 b

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
s

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

 (
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
)

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
e

c
ti
o

n

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

P
o

lic
y
 T

e
a

m
N

o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

R
o
u
n
d
in

g
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

N
o

te
s
 t

o
 A

g
re

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

R
e

a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d

in
 F

in
a

n
c

e
 D

ig
e

s
t 

P
e

ri
o

d
 3

0

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 T

h
is

 M
o
n
th

's
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s

D
e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
£
2
0
k
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 d
u
e
 t
o
 l
o
w

e
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 a

t 
c
o
m

p
e
ti
n
g
 

s
it
e
s
. 

1
2

0

0
5

8
0

9
8

5

5
8

5

£
0
0
0
's

2
,1

6
2

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

O
ri
g
in

a
l

A
g
re

e
d

C
u
rr

e
n
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

C
h
a
n
g
e

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

1
2

2
,1

6
2

0

9
8

5
0

5
8

5
0

5
8

0
0

2
0 00

000

0

0
2

0

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

@
 P

e
ri

o
d

 3

5
8

0

9
8

5

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

£
0
0
0
's

2
,1

8
2

1
2

0

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

T
o
ta

l

0

2
0

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

O
u
tt
u
rn

£
0
0
0
's

6
0

5

0

2
0

�
�
�
�
��

Page 92



T
a

b
le

 2
 -

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 b

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
s

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

 (
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
)

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

N
o

te
s
 t

o
 A

g
re

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

R
e

a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d

in
 F

in
a

n
c

e
 D

ig
e

s
t 

P
e

ri
o

d
 3

B
u
d
g
e
t

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 T

h
is

 M
o
n
th

's
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s

0
1

,4
9

2

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

1
,4

9
2

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

£
0
0
0
's

1
,4

9
2

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

£
0
0
0
's

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

0
0

1
,4

9
2

£
0
0
0
's

0

£
0
0
0
's

@
 P

e
ri

o
d

 3
S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

O
ri
g
in

a
l

A
g
re

e
d

C
h
a
n
g
e

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

B
u
d
g
e
t

1
,4

9
2

0

1
,4

9
2

0

C
u
rr

e
n
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

£
0
0
0
's

0

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

O
u
tt
u
rn

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

0

0

T
o
ta

l

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

�
�
�
�
�


Page 93



T
a

b
le

 2
 -

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 b

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
s

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

 (
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
)

L
e

g
a

l 
a

n
d

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

L
e

g
a

l 
a

n
d

 D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

P
ro

p
e

rt
y

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

B
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
c
ts

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

L
e

g
a

l 
a

n
d

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

N
o

te
s
 t

o
 A

g
re

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

R
e

a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d

in
 F

in
a

n
c

e
 D

ig
e

s
t 

P
e

ri
o

d
 3

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
£
2
k
 o

f 
IT

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 s

p
e
n
d
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 o

n
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 s

o
ft

w
a
re

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 w

e
b
 h

o
s
ti
n
g
.

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 T

h
is

 M
o
n
th

's
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

0 (8
)

0
(5

,1
5

4
)

0

1
,5

9
1

@
 P

e
ri

o
d

 3

2

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

O
ri
g
in

a
l

A
g
re

e
d

£
0
0
0
's

C
h
a
n
g
e

£
0
0
0
's

B
u
d
g
e
t

1
,5

9
1

0

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
7

2
(8

)

B
u
d
g
e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

(5
,1

5
4

)
(5

,1
5

4
)

5
7

0
5

7
0

0

(2
,7

2
1

)
(8

)
(2

,7
2

9
)

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

2

0

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e 0

£
0
0
0
's

0

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th 0

1
,5

9
3

£
0
0
0
's

2

0

0

T
o
ta

l
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

(2
,7

2
7

)

0 0

O
u
tt
u
rn

2

2
6

4

5
7

0

2
6

4
0

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

£
0
0
0
's

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

�
�
�
�
��
�

Page 94



T
a

b
le

 2
 -

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 b

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
s

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

 (
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
)

S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
N

o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

N
o

te
s
 t

o
 A

g
re

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

R
e

a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d

in
 F

in
a

n
c

e
 D

ig
e

s
t 

P
e

ri
o

d
 3

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 T

h
is

 M
o
n
th

's
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

0

£
0
0
0
's

O
u
tt
u
rn

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e 0

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

F
o
re

c
a
s
t 0

3
0

0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

O
ri
g
in

a
l

A
g
re

e
d

C
u
rr

e
n
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

0

3
0

3
0

0
3

0

3
0

0

C
h
a
n
g
e

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th

£
0
0
0
's

@
 P

e
ri

o
d

 3

0 0

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

T
o
ta

l

3
0

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

�
�
�
�
��
�

Page 95



T
a

b
le

 2
 -

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 b

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
s

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

 (
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
)

S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

IC
T

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

F
in

a
n

c
e

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

R
o
u
n
d
in

g
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

N
o

te
s
 t

o
 A

g
re

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

R
e

a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d

in
 F

in
a

n
c

e
 D

ig
e

s
t 

P
e

ri
o

d
 3

8
3

5

0

C
h
a
n
g
e

@
 P

e
ri

o
d

 3

0

3
,8

1
5

0 0

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

T
o
ta

l

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

0

00

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

1
,5

5
9

00

0

0
9

5
0

0

0 0
4

7
1

4
7

1

9
5

0

3
,8

1
5

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 T

h
is

 M
o
n
th

's
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

O
u
tt
u
rn

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th

1
,5

5
9

0

9
5

0
0

3
,8

1
5

0

£
0
0
0
's

O
ri
g
in

a
l

A
g
re

e
d

C
u
rr

e
n
t

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

8
3

5
0

4
7

1
0

1
,5

5
9

0

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

8
3

5
0

�
�
�
�
��
�

Page 96



T
a

b
le

 2
 -

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 b

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
s

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

 (
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n

c
e

F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

F
in

a
n

c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 C

lie
n

t

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 C
lie

n
t

IC
T

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 C

lie
n

t

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 C

lie
n

t

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

s
ts

C
a

p
it
a

l 
&

 F
R

S
1

7
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n

c
e

N
o

te
s
 t

o
 A

g
re

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

R
e

a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e

A
g

re
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d

in
 F

in
a

n
c

e
 D

ig
e

s
t 

P
e

ri
o

d
 3

88

(3
,9

6
4

)

6
1

8
(4

,4
1

9
)

0
(4

,3
5

8
)

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

6
1

00
1

,6
0

0
0 0

(1
6

5
)

2
3

1

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

O
u
tt
u
rn

00

T
o
ta

l

0

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

0

0
(1

0
4

)

0
00

(4
6

3
)

0
00

@
 P

e
ri

o
d

 3

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th

6
10

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

O
ri
g
in

a
l

A
g
re

e
d

C
u
rr

e
n
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

(4
,4

2
7

)

0

1
,6

0
0

0

(3
,9

6
4

)

0
0

(3
,9

6
4

)

1
,6

1
0

(1
0

)

0

0
0

(4
7

1
)

0
(4

6
3

)

0
(8

3
5

)

(1
6

5
)

0

(8
3

5
)

0

(8
2

3
)

0
(8

2
3

)
0

2
2

1
1

0
2

3
1

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

C
h
a
n
g
e

£
0
0
0
's

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

6
1

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 T

h
is

 M
o
n
th

's
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

(8
2

3
)

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

0

(8
3

5
)

�
�
�
�
��
�

Page 97



T
a
b

le
 3

 -
 S

a
la

ri
e
s
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

S
a
la

ri
e
s
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 (
E

x
c
l.
 I
A

S
1
9
)

�

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

�

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

�

P
la

n
n
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

�

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

�

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

�

S
h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

�

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e

�

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

�

T
o

ta
l

�

N
o
te

s
 t
o
 A

g
re

e
d
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
C

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
 f

o
r 

A
g
re

e
d
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
C

h
a
n
g
e

A
g

re
e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

in
 F

in
a
n

c
e
 D

ig
e
s
t 

P
e
ri

o
d

 3

N
o

 m
o

n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

.

N
o

 m
o

n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

.

N
o

 m
o

n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

.

N
o

 m
o

n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

.

N
o

 m
o

n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

.

N
o

 m
o

n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

.

N
o

 m
o

n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

.

0
0

2
3
2

0
.0

0

0

3
4

1
4
,7

0
5

1
4
,5

2
2

3
4

1
4
,5

5
6

2
3
1

1
3
0

(5
)

1
2
5

1
9
4

2
3
2

0
2
3
2

0
0

0
.0

0
3
3

0
0

0

3
,1

1
0

3
,0

5
8

0
3
,0

5
8

0
0

3
,0

5
8

0
.0

0

0
0

4
0
3

0
.0

0
5
3
7

4
0
3

0
4
0
3

1
,8

8
7

1
,9

8
3

0
1
,9

8
3

0
0

1
,9

8
3

0
.0

0

0
0

5
,8

7
6

0
.0

0
5
,6

4
8

5
,8

7
6

0
5
,8

7
6

2
,8

6
5

(0
.5

)
3
,0

6
5

2
,8

4
0

3
9

2
,8

7
9

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

N
o

 m
o

n
th

ly
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

.

%
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

@
 P

e
ri
o

d
 3

T
h
is

 M
o
n
th

T
o

ta
l

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
's

 

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

Y
e

a
r 

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

O
u

tt
u

rn

C
u

rr
e

n
t

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

P
re

v
io

u
s

O
ri

g
in

a
l

A
g

re
e

d

R
e

s
ta

te
d

C
h

a
n

g
e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

0 0

£
0

0
0

's

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

£
0

0
0

's (1
4
)

£
0

0
0

's

(1
4
)

0

1
2
5

0
.0

(1
4
)

1
4
,5

4
2

(0
.1

)

0
0

(1
4
)

�
�
�
�
��
�

Page 98



Part 2 - Performance Indicators

2 - Performance Indicators

Treasury Management Performance

The current estimate of interest returns for 2012/13 is:

Best case

Central case

Worst case

Interest base rates (0.5%) are not now expected to rise until January 2014.

The following analysis identifies performance on the Councils key ‘financial health’ and

key business indicators.

2.1

The performance of the council’s treasury management strategy for the period ending

31st July 2012 shows an average annualised return on investments of 1.4% (compared

to an estimate of 1.3%). Interest received as at 31st July 2012 (after allowing for

previous year accruals) equates to £90k.

2012/13

1.4 %

1.3 %

1.2 %

������	

Page 99



Council Tax and NNDR

67% of council tax is paid by direct debit which is the cheapest and most reliable form

of collection.

95.3

March 96.3 96.7 97.0

February 95.7 95.0

88.8

January 93.5 92.8 93.1

December 87.2 88.6

69.1

November 80.2 77.8 78.0

October 68.9 68.9

50.7

September 57.9 60.2 60.4

August 51.7 50.5

33.5

July 37.2 41.6 41.8 41.8

June 27.2 33.4 32.6

13.8

May 17.2 23.5 23.0 23.6

April 9.6 13.7 13.5

96.0

NNDR Collection rates
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Target

% % % %

March 95.3 95.5

90.4

February 92.8 93.6 93.7

January 88.9 90.3

73.3

December 80.4 82.1 82.2

November 71.9 73.2

36.8

55.1

October 62.8 64.0 64.1

September 54.1 55.0

19.6

37.7

August 45.0 46.5 46.6

July 35.8 37.6

10.8

19.8

June 27.2 28.5 28.1 28.6

May 17.8 19.7

April 10.8 10.7 11.1

The Council Tax and NNDR collection rates @ period 4 are as follows :-

Council Tax Collection rates
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Target

% % % %

2.2

������


Page 100



Creditor Payment Monitoring @ period 4 (July 2012)

Creditor Payment Monitoring Statistics By Service Area

Cumulative Percentages of Payments Made On Time

The April figure was not reported separately in 2010/11 so a historic comparison for this

month is not possible.

March 89.16 93.51

February 87.94 93.29

January 87.91 93.04

December 87.59 93.37

November 86.45 93.22

October 84.61 92.65

September 81.59 92.49

August 74.62 92.63

July 71.77 93.23 90.91

June 69.79 93.27 91.69

May 63.77 95.11 92.09

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

April N/A 98.45 94.67

683 88.82 90.91Total 769 86

87.06 85.64

Legal and Property 182

Shared Services 85 11 74

44 138

71.43 84.00

96.55 84.42

75.82 80.91

Managing Director 29 1 28

Planning 35 10 25

97.90 98.38

Community Services 104

Environmental Services 334 7 327

13 91

(Yr to date)Invoices

87.50 93.94

(This Month)

Payments

On TimeUndisputed Payments On Time On Time

Total Late Payments Payments

The number of payments made by BACS for the month was 85.83% (cumulative figure

is 86.40%) against a target of 90%.

% %

2.3

The Council paid 88.82% of undisputed invoices within 30 days (against an Audit

Commission target of 100%)

�������

Page 101



Debtors Monitoring @ period 4 (July 2012)

General Debtor Invoices Raised to the end of July 2012

Service Area

Housing

Finance

ICT

Revenues & Benefits

Total

Of the outstanding debt of £921,864, the amount between 0 to 3 months old is 

£570,270 (61.9%)

11.654,433 7,911,920 6,990,056 921,864

4.98

114 538,590 524,584 14,007 2.60

3 683 649 34

0 N/A 

Legal and Property 2,405

Human Resources 0 0 0

5,398,783 4,768,357

82,364 18.83

6,300 81.40

630,426 11.68

Corporate Management 7 7,740 1,440

Planning 97 437,439 355,075

98,964 15.73

Community Services 98

Environmental Services 1,420 629,301 530,337

884,401 801,600

%

82,800 9.36

£ £ £

No. Total

Invoices Raised Collected Outstanding

2.4

A summary of debtors raised / paid is shown in the table below. 

Invoices Raised from 1st April 2012 to 31st July 2012

6,969

N/A 

46.51

0 0 0 0

289 14,983 8,014

�������

Page 102



Key Business Indicators

Monthly indicators at the end of July 2012 (Period 4) are :-

2.5

98%

£148k

ActualPerformance Indicator

Occupancy rates - Market 75% 58%

99%

£1,502k

Occupancy rates - Commercial Property

Target for Year

Repair & Maintenance Programme     (incl 

Yr 5 capitalised  budget)         

ICT service availability to users during 

core working hours                                
99.5% 99.88% during month

Sickness Levels

Staff Appraisals completed on time 100% 80.29%

CSC - all calls answered 95% 99.70%

% of valid bins missed <0.05% 0.05%

Average time to process change of 

circumstances
15 days 35.47 days

2.17 days (profiled 

target)

2.90 days @ end of 

July 2012

Complaints resolved at Stage 1 90% 59%

25 days 36.83 days
Average time to process housing benefits 

claims (from date of claim)

Capital Programme Section 106 £674k£4,799k

£784kCapital Programme General £7,516k

������


Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Localisation of Council Tax Support
	Appendix I - Explanatory Note
	Appendix II - Consultation 2012

	6 Income Policy Review
	Appendix 1 - Fees and Charges Policy
	Appendix 2 - Lancaster City Council Fees and Charges Policy
	Appendix 3 - Woking Borough Council Fees adn Charges
	Appendix 4 - Newark and Sherwood District Council Charging Policy

	7 Summary of the Financial Outturn 2011/2012
	Outturn Appendix 1A
	Outturn Appendix 1B
	Outturn Appendix 1C
	Outturn Appendix 1D
	Outturn Appendix 1E
	Outturn Appendix 1F
	Outturn Appendix 1G
	Outturn Appendix 2

	8 Finance Digest 2012/2013: Period 4 (end of July)
	Finance Digest Appendix 1


